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x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2012
 
¨ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from                     to                     
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12
months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing for the past 90 days.
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Prologis, L.P.       Yes  x    No  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate website; if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and
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Prologis, Inc.       Yes  x    No  ¨
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Large accelerated filer  x   Accelerated filer  ¨
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934).
 
Prologis, Inc.       Yes  ¨    No  x
Prologis, L.P.       Yes  ¨    No  x

The number of shares of Prologis, Inc.’s common stock outstanding as of August 1, 2012 was approximately 460,678,000.
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EXPLANATORY NOTE

This report combines the quarterly reports on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2012 of Prologis, Inc. and Prologis, L.P. Unless stated otherwise or the context otherwise
requires, references to “Prologis, Inc.” or the “REIT”, mean Prologis, Inc., and its consolidated subsidiaries; and references to “Prologis, L.P.” or the “Operating Partnership”
mean Prologis, L.P., and its consolidated subsidiaries. The terms “the Company”, “Prologis”, “we”, “our” or “us” means the REIT and the Operating Partnership collectively.

Prologis, Inc. is a real estate investment trust and the general partner of the Operating Partnership. As of June 30, 2012, the REIT owned an approximate 99.59% common
general partnership interest in the Operating Partnership and 100% of the preferred units in the Operating Partnership. The remaining approximate 0.41% common limited
partnership interest is owned by non-affiliated investors and certain current and former directors and officers of the REIT. As the sole general partner of the Operating
Partnership, the REIT has full, exclusive and complete responsibility and discretion in the day-to-day management and control of the Operating Partnership.

We operate the REIT and the Operating Partnership as one enterprise. The management of the REIT consists of the same members as the management of the Operating
Partnership. These members are officers of the REIT and employees of the Operating Partnership or one of its direct or indirect subsidiaries. As general partner with control of
the Operating Partnership, the REIT consolidates the Operating Partnership for financial reporting purposes, and the REIT does not have significant assets other than its
investment in the Operating Partnership. Therefore, the assets and liabilities of the REIT and the Operating Partnership are the same on their respective financial statements.

We believe combining the quarterly reports on Form 10-Q of the REIT and the Operating Partnership into this single report results in the following benefits:
 

 •  enhances investors’ understanding of the REIT and the Operating Partnership by enabling investors to view the business as a whole in the same manner as
management views and operates the business;

 

 •  eliminates duplicative disclosure and provides a more streamlined and readable presentation since a substantial portion of the Company’s disclosure applies to
both the REIT and the Operating Partnership; and

 

 •  creates time and cost efficiencies through the preparation of one combined report instead of two separate reports.
We believe it is important to understand the few differences between the REIT and the Operating Partnership in the context of how we operate as an interrelated consolidated
company. The REIT’s only material asset is its ownership of partnership interests in the Operating Partnership. As a result, the REIT does not conduct business itself, other than
acting as the sole general partner of the Operating Partnership and issuing public equity from time to time. The REIT itself does not issue any indebtedness, but guarantees the
unsecured debt of the Operating Partnership. The Operating Partnership holds substantially all the assets of the business, directly or indirectly, and holds the ownership interests
in the Company’s investment in certain entities. The Operating Partnership conducts the operations of the business and is structured as a partnership with no publicly traded
equity. Except for net proceeds from equity issuances by the REIT, which are contributed to the Operating Partnership in exchange for partnership units, the Operating
Partnership generates the capital required by the business through the Operating Partnership’s operations, its incurrence of indebtedness and the issuance of partnership units to
third parties.

Noncontrolling interests, stockholders’ equity and partners’ capital are the main areas of difference between the consolidated financial statements of the REIT and those of the
Operating Partnership. The noncontrolling interests in the Operating Partnership’s financial statements include the interests in consolidated entities not owned by the Operating
Partnership. The noncontrolling interests in the REIT’s financial statements include the same noncontrolling interests at the Operating Partnership level, as well as the common
limited partnership interests in the Operating Partnership, which are accounted for as partners’ capital by the Operating Partnership.

In order to highlight the differences between the REIT and the Operating Partnership, there are separate sections in this report, as applicable, that separately discuss the REIT
and the Operating Partnership including separate financial statements, controls and procedures sections, and separate Exhibit 31 and 32 certifications. In the sections that
combine disclosure of the REIT and the Operating Partnership, this report refers to actions or holdings as being actions or holdings of Prologis.
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 PART 1.
 Item  1. Financial Statements

 PROLOGIS, INC.

 CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except per share data)

 
   June 30,     
   2012   December 31,  
   (Unaudited)   2011  
ASSETS   
Investments in real estate properties   $26,422,297   $24,787,537  
Less accumulated depreciation    2,256,101    2,157,907  

  

Net investments in real estate properties    24,166,196    22,629,630  
Investments in and advances to unconsolidated entities    2,220,172    2,857,755  
Notes receivable backed by real estate    245,654    322,834  
Assets held for sale    50,672    444,850  

  

Net investments in real estate    26,682,694    26,255,069  

Cash and cash equivalents    293,631    176,072  
Restricted cash    151,184    71,992  
Accounts receivable    168,008    147,999  
Other assets    1,120,046    1,072,780  

  

Total assets   $28,415,563   $27,723,912  
  

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY    
Liabilities:    

Debt   $12,433,585   $11,382,408  
Accounts payable and accrued expenses    600,019    639,490  
Other liabilities    1,193,479    1,225,548  
Liabilities related to assets held for sale    18,913    20,992  

  

Total liabilities    14,245,996    13,268,438  
  

Equity:    
Prologis, Inc. stockholders’ equity:    

Preferred stock    582,200    582,200  
Common stock; $0.01 par value; 460,624 shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 2012 and 459,401 shares issued and

outstanding at December 31, 2011    4,606    4,594  
Additional paid-in capital    16,373,438    16,349,328  
Accumulated other comprehensive loss    (333,811)   (182,321) 
Distributions in excess of net earnings    (3,159,462)   (3,092,162) 

  

Total Prologis stockholders’ equity    13,466,971    13,661,639  
Noncontrolling interests    702,596    793,835  

  

Total equity    14,169,567    14,455,474  
  

Total liabilities and equity   $28,415,563   $27,723,912  
  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PROLOGIS, INC.

 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Unaudited)

(In thousands, except per share amounts)
 
   Three Months Ended   Six Months Ended  
   June 30,   June 30,  
   2012   2011   2012   2011  
Revenues:      

Rental income   $ 387,089   $ 222,713   $ 757,954   $ 374,645  
Rental recoveries    100,937    56,303    192,566    99,011  
Private capital revenue    30,993    32,976    63,350    62,811  
Development management and other income    1,729    8,920    4,842    13,239  

  

Total revenues    520,748    320,912    1,018,712    549,706  
  

Expenses:      
Rental expenses    132,031    77,199    256,474    137,397  
Private capital expenses    15,075    11,596    31,956    22,148  
General and administrative expenses    51,415    51,840    111,574    91,023  
Merger, acquisition and other integration expenses    21,186    103,052    31,914    109,040  
Impairment of real estate properties    —      —      3,185    —    
Depreciation and amortization    186,770    118,606    374,640    198,183  
Other expenses    7,227    5,587    11,562    10,271  

  

Total expenses    413,704    367,880    821,305    568,062  
  

Operating income (loss)    107,044    (46,968)   197,407    (18,356) 

Other income (expense):      
Earnings from unconsolidated entities, net    3,889    11,399    17,884    25,040  
Interest expense    (127,946)   (112,916)   (261,328)   (203,443) 
Impairment of other assets    —      (103,823)   (16,135)   (103,823) 
Interest and other income, net    5,912    5,277    11,013    2,698  
Gains on acquisitions and dispositions of investments in real estate, net    520    102,529    268,291    106,254  
Foreign currency and derivative gains (losses), net    12,753    (10,255)   (14,022)   (8,881) 
Gain (loss) on early extinguishment of debt, net    (500)   —      4,919    —    

  

Total other income (expense)    (105,372)   (107,789)   10,622    (182,155) 
  

Earnings (loss) before income taxes    1,672    (154,757)   208,029    (200,511) 
Current income tax expense    17,995    6,311    29,068    11,816  
Deferred income tax expense (benefit)    (9,920)   118    (8,869)   982  

  

Total income tax expense    8,075    6,429    20,199    12,798  
  

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations    (6,403)   (161,186)   187,830    (213,309) 
  

Discontinued operations:      
Income attributable to disposed properties and assets held for sale    1,197    9,384    8,813    19,383  
Net gains on dispositions, net of related impairment charges and taxes    9,874    8,175    21,123    10,135  

  

Total discontinued operations    11,071    17,559    29,936    29,518  
  

Consolidated net earnings (loss)    4,668    (143,627)   217,766    (183,791) 
Net earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests    (2,739)   (202)   (2,857)   (285) 

  

Net earnings (loss) attributable to controlling interests    1,929    (143,829)   214,909    (184,076) 
Less preferred share dividends    10,049    7,642    20,616    14,011  

  

Net earnings (loss) available for common stockholders   $ (8,120)  $(151,471)  $ 194,293   $(198,087) 
  

Weighted average common shares outstanding - Basic    459,878    307,756    459,549    281,384  
  

Weighted average common shares outstanding - Diluted    459,878    307,756    464,696    281,384  
  

Net earnings (loss) per share available for common stockholders - Basic:      
Continuing operations   $ (0.04)  $ (0.55)  $ 0.36   $ (0.80) 
Discontinued operations    0.02    0.06    0.06    0.10  

  

Net earnings (loss) per share available for common stockholders - Basic   $ (0.02)  $ (0.49)  $ 0.42   $ (0.70) 
  

Net earnings (loss) per share available for common stockholders - Diluted:      
Continuing operations   $ (0.04)  $ (0.55)  $ 0.36   $ (0.80) 
Discontinued operations    0.02    0.06    0.06    0.10  

  

Net earnings (loss) per share available for common stockholders - Diluted   $ (0.02)  $ (0.49)  $ 0.42   $ (0.70) 
  

Dividends per common share   $ 0.28   $ 0.25   $ 0.56   $ 0.50  
  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PROLOGIS, INC.

 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(Unaudited)

(In thousands)
 
   Three Months Ended   Six Months Ended  
   June 30,   June 30,  
   2012   2011   2012   2011  
Consolidated net earnings (loss)   $ 4,668   $(143,627)  $ 217,766   $(183,791) 
Other comprehensive income (loss):      

Foreign currency translation gains (losses), net    (127,443)   10,417    (168,684)   214,278  
Unrealized gains (losses) and amortization on derivative contracts, net    1,247    (736)   4,702    14,636  

  

Comprehensive income (loss)    (121,528)   (133,946)   53,784    45,123  
Net earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests    (2,739)   (202)   (2,857)   (285) 
Other comprehensive loss (income) attributable to noncontrolling interests    11,959    2,218    12,492    (390) 

  

Comprehensive income (loss) available for common stockholders   $(112,308)  $(131,930)  $ 63,419   $ 44,448  
  

PROLOGIS, INC.

 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EQUITY
Six Months Ended June 30, 2012

(Unaudited)
(In thousands)

 
       Common Stock       Accumulated   Distributions        
       Number        Additional   Other   in Excess of   Non-     
   Preferred    of    Par    Paid-in   Comprehensive  Net   controlling   Total  
   Stock    Shares    Value    Capital   Loss   Earnings   interests   Equity  
Balance as of January 1, 2012   $582,200     459,401    $4,594    $16,349,328   $ (182,321)  $(3,092,162)  $ 793,835   $14,455,474  
Consolidated net earnings    —       —       —       —      —      214,909    2,857    217,766  
Adjustment to the Merger purchase price allocation    —       —       —       —      —      —      10,163    10,163  
Effect of common stock plans    —       1,223     12     32,879    —      —      —      32,891  
Capital contributions, net    —       —       —       —      —      —      36,920    36,920  
Purchase of noncontrolling interests    —       —       —       (8,933)   —      —      (118,588)   (127,521) 
Foreign currency translation losses, net    —       —       —       —      (156,173)   —      (12,511)   (168,684) 
Unrealized gains and amortization on derivative

contracts, net    —       —       —       —      4,683    —      19    4,702  
Distributions and allocations    —       —       —       164    —      (282,209)   (10,099)   (292,144) 

        

Balance as of June 30, 2012   $582,200     460,624    $4,606    $16,373,438   $ (333,811)  $(3,159,462)  $ 702,596   $14,169,567  
        

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PROLOGIS, INC.

 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited)

(In thousands)
 
   Six Months Ended  
   June 30,  
   2012   2011  
Operating activities:    

Consolidated net earnings (loss)   $ 217,766   $ (183,791) 
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:    

Straight-lined rents    (35,205)   (23,368) 
Stock-based compensation awards, net    21,269    5,039  
Depreciation and amortization    379,602    207,549  
Earnings from unconsolidated entities, net    (17,884)   (25,040) 
Distributions and changes in operating receivables from our unconsolidated entities    14,461    17,000  
Amortization of debt and lease intangibles    13,144    27,590  
Non-cash merger expenses    5,379    14,889  
Impairment of real estate properties and other assets    19,320    103,823  
Net gains on dispositions, net of related impairment charges, included in discontinued operations    (21,123)   (12,051) 
Gains recognized on property acquisitions and dispositions, net    (268,291)   (106,254) 
Gain on early extinguishment of debt, net    (4,919)   —    
Unrealized foreign currency and derivative losses, net    9,717    8,652  
Deferred income tax expense (benefit)    (8,869)   982  

Increase in restricted cash, accounts receivable and other assets    (103,574)   (53,663) 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses and other liabilities    (60,688)   2,746  

  

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities    160,105    (15,897) 
  

Investing activities:    
Real estate development activity    (379,488)   (383,494) 
Real estate acquisitions    (74,823)   (64,749) 
Tenant improvements and lease commissions on previously leased space    (60,822)   (28,197) 
Non-development capital expenditures    (24,915)   (13,865) 
Net advances from (investments in and net advances to) unconsolidated entities    (50,366)   11,329  
Return of investment from unconsolidated entities    208,834    57,256  
Proceeds from dispositions of real estate properties    888,734    610,371  
Proceeds from repayment of notes receivable    —      9,695  
Investments in notes receivable backed by real estate and advances on other notes receivable    —      (55,000) 
Cash acquired in connection with AMB merger    —      234,045  
Acquisition of ProLogis European Properties (“PEPR”), net of cash received    —      (1,025,251) 
Acquisition of NAIF II, net of cash received    (317,328)   —    

  

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities    189,826    (647,860) 
  

Financing activities:    
Issuance of common stock, net    23,064    1,156,493  
Dividends paid on common stock    (260,492)   (129,030) 
Dividends paid on preferred stock    (26,964)   (12,708) 
Noncontrolling interest contributions    36,920    —    
Noncontrolling interest distributions    (6,722)   (170) 
Purchase of noncontrolling interest    (127,523)   —    
Debt and equity issuance costs paid    (9,694)   (67,316) 
Proceeds from (payments on) credit facilities, net    220,742    (50,213) 
Proceeds from issuance of debt    1,378,119    885,453  
Payments on debt    (1,466,818)   (897,115) 

  

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities    (239,368)   885,394  
  

Effect of foreign currency exchange rate changes on cash    6,996    1,622  
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents    117,559    223,259  
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period    176,072    37,634  

  

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period   $ 293,631   $ 260,893  
  

See Note 16 for information on non-cash investing and financing activities and other information.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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 PROLOGIS, L.P.

 CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands)

 
   June 30,      
   2012    December 31,  
   (Unaudited)    2011  
ASSETS     
Investments in real estate properties   $26,422,297    $ 24,787,537  
Less accumulated depreciation    2,256,101     2,157,907  

    

Net investments in real estate properties    24,166,196     22,629,630  
Investments in and advances to unconsolidated entities    2,220,172     2,857,755  
Notes receivable backed by real estate    245,654     322,834  
Assets held for sale    50,672     444,850  

    

Net investments in real estate    26,682,694     26,255,069  

Cash and cash equivalents    293,631     176,072  
Restricted cash    151,184     71,992  
Accounts receivable    168,008     147,999  
Other assets    1,120,046     1,072,780  

    

Total assets   $28,415,563    $ 27,723,912  
    

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL     
Liabilities:     

Debt   $12,433,585    $ 11,382,408  
Accounts payable and accrued expenses    600,019     639,490  
Other liabilities    1,193,479     1,225,548  
Liabilities related to assets held for sale    18,913     20,992  

    

Total liabilities    14,245,996     13,268,438  
    

Capital:     
Partners’ capital:     

General partner - preferred    582,200     582,200  
General partner - common    12,884,771     13,079,439  
Limited partners    53,207     58,613  

    

Total partners’ capital    13,520,178     13,720,252  
Noncontrolling interests    649,389     735,222  

    

Total capital    14,169,567     14,455,474  
    

Total liabilities and capital   $28,415,563    $ 27,723,912  
    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PROLOGIS, L.P.
 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Unaudited)
(In thousands, except per unit amounts)

 
   Three Months Ended   Six Months Ended  
   June 30,   June 30,  
   2012   2011   2012   2011  
Revenues:      

Rental income   $ 387,089   $ 222,713   $ 757,954   $ 374,645  
Rental recoveries    100,937    56,303    192,566    99,011  
Private capital revenue    30,993    32,976    63,350    62,811  
Development management and other income    1,729    8,920    4,842    13,239  

  

Total revenues    520,748    320,912    1,018,712    549,706  
  

Expenses:      
Rental expenses    132,031    77,199    256,474    137,397  
Private capital expenses    15,075    11,596    31,956    22,148  
General and administrative expenses    51,415    51,840    111,574    91,023  
Merger, acquisition and other integration expenses    21,186    103,052    31,914    109,040  
Impairment of real estate properties    —      —      3,185    —    
Depreciation and amortization    186,770    118,606    374,640    198,183  
Other expenses    7,227    5,587    11,562    10,271  

  

Total expenses    413,704    367,880    821,305    568,062  
  

Operating income (loss)    107,044    (46,968)   197,407    (18,356) 

Other income (expense):      
Earnings from unconsolidated entities, net    3,889    11,399    17,884    25,040  
Interest expense    (127,946)   (112,916)   (261,328)   (203,443) 
Impairment of other assets    —      (103,823)   (16,135)   (103,823) 
Interest and other income, net    5,912    5,277    11,013    2,698  
Gains on acquisitions and dispositions of investments in real estate, net    520    102,529    268,291    106,254  
Foreign currency and derivative gains (losses), net    12,753    (10,255)   (14,022)   (8,881) 
Gain (loss) on early extinguishment of debt, net    (500)   —      4,919    —    

  

Total other income (expense)    (105,372)   (107,789)   10,622    (182,155) 
  

Earnings (loss) before income taxes    1,672    (154,757)   208,029    (200,511) 
Current income tax expense    17,995    6,311    29,068    11,816  
Deferred income tax expense (benefit)    (9,920)   118    (8,869)   982  

  

Total income tax expense    8,075    6,429    20,199    12,798  
  

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations    (6,403)   (161,186)   187,830    (213,309) 
  

Discontinued operations:      
Income attributable to disposed properties and assets held for sale    1,197    9,384    8,813    19,383  
Net gains on dispositions, net of related impairment charges and taxes    9,874    8,175    21,123    10,135  

  

Total discontinued operations    11,071    17,559    29,936    29,518  
  

Consolidated net earnings (loss)    4,668    (143,627)   217,766    (183,791) 
Net earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests    (2,792)   (202)   (1,969)   (285) 

  

Net earnings (loss) attributable to controlling interests    1,876    (143,829)   215,797    (184,076) 
Less preferred unit dividends    10,049    7,642    20,616    14,011  

  

Net earnings (loss) available for common unitholders   $ (8,173)  $(151,471)  $ 195,181   $(198,087) 
  

Weighted average common units outstanding - Basic    461,842    308,389    461,559    281,702  
  

Weighted average common units outstanding - Diluted    461,842    308,389    464,696    281,702  
  

Net earnings (loss) per unit available for common unitholders - Basic:      
Continuing operations   $ (0.04)  $ (0.55)  $ 0.36   $ (0.80) 
Discontinued operations    0.02    0.06    0.06    0.10  

  

Net earnings (loss) per unit available for common unitholders - Basic   $ (0.02)  $ (0.49)  $ 0.42   $ (0.70) 
  

Net earnings (loss) per unit available for common unitholders - Diluted:      
Continuing operations   $ (0.04)  $ (0.55)  $ 0.36   $ (0.80) 
Discontinued operations    0.02    0.06    0.06    0.10  

  

Net earnings (loss) per unit available for common unitholders - Diluted   $ (0.02)  $ (0.49)  $ 0.42   $ (0.70) 
  

Distributions per common unit   $ 0.28   $ 0.25   $ 0.56   $ 0.50  
  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PROLOGIS, L.P.

 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(Unaudited)

(In thousands)
 
   Three Months Ended   Six Months Ended  
   June 30,   June 30,  
   2012   2011   2012   2011  
Consolidated net earnings (loss)   $ 4,668   $(143,627)  $ 217,766   $(183,791) 
Other comprehensive income (loss):      

Foreign currency translation gains (losses), net    (127,443)   10,417    (168,684)   214,278  
Unrealized gains (losses) and amortization on derivative contracts, net    1,247    (736)   4,702    14,636  

  

Comprehensive income (loss)    (121,528)   (133,946)   53,784    45,123  
Net earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests    (2,792)   (202)   (1,969)   (285) 
Other comprehensive loss (income) attributable to noncontrolling interests    11,333    2,218    11,866    (390) 

  

Comprehensive income (loss) available for common unitholders   $(112,987)  $(131,930)  $ 63,681   $ 44,448  
  

PROLOGIS, L.P.

 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CAPITAL
Six Months Ended June 30, 2012

(Unaudited)
(In thousands)

 
  General Partner   Limited Partners   Non-     
  Preferred   Common   Common   controlling     
  Units   Amount   Units   Amount   Units   Amount   Interests   Total  
Balance as of January 1, 2012   21,300   $582,200    459,401   $13,079,439    2,059   $58,613   $ 735,222   $14,455,474  
Consolidated net earnings   —      —      —      214,909    —      888    1,969    217,766  
Adjustment to the Merger purchase price allocation   —      —      —      —      —      —      10,163    10,163  
Effect of REIT’s common stock plans   —      —      1,223    32,891    —      —      —      32,891  
Capital contributions, net   —      —      —      —      —      —      36,920    36,920  
Purchase of noncontrolling interests   —      —      —      (8,933)   —       (113,086)   (122,019) 
Foreign currency translation losses, net   —      —      —      (156,173)   —      (645)   (11,866)   (168,684) 
Unrealized gain and amortization on derivative contracts, net   —      —      —      4,683    —      19    —      4,702  
Distributions and allocations   —      —      —      (282,045)   (157)   (5,668)   (9,933)   (297,646) 
Balance as of June 30, 2012   21,300   $582,200    460,624   $12,884,771    1,902   $53,207   $ 649,389   $14,169,567  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PROLOGIS, L.P.

 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited)

(In thousands)
 
   Six Months Ended  
   June 30,  
   2012   2011  
Operating activities:    

Consolidated net earnings (loss)   $ 217,766   $ (183,791) 
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:    

Straight-lined rents    (35,205)   (23,368) 
REIT stock-based compensation awards, net    21,269    5,039  
Depreciation and amortization    379,602    207,549  
Earnings from unconsolidated entities, net    (17,884)   (25,040) 
Distributions and changes in operating receivables from our unconsolidated entities    14,461    17,000  
Amortization of debt and lease intangibles    13,144    27,590  
Non-cash merger expenses    5,379    14,889  
Impairment of real estate properties and other assets    19,320    103,823  
Net gains on dispositions, net of related impairment charges, included in discontinued operations    (21,123)   (12,051) 
Gains recognized on property acquisitions and dispositions, net    (268,291)   (106,254) 
Gain on early extinguishment of debt, net    (4,919)   —    
Unrealized foreign currency and derivative losses, net    9,717    8,652  
Deferred income tax expense (benefit)    (8,869)   982  

Increase in restricted cash, accounts receivable and other assets    (103,574)   (53,663) 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses and other liabilities    (60,688)   2,746  

  

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities    160,105    (15,897) 
  

Investing activities:    
Real estate development activity    (379,488)   (383,494) 
Real estate acquisitions    (74,823)   (64,749) 
Tenant improvements and lease commissions on previously leased space    (60,822)   (28,197) 
Non-development capital expenditures    (24,915)   (13,865) 
Net advances from (investments in and advances to) unconsolidated entities    (50,366)   11,329  
Return of investment from unconsolidated entities    208,834    57,256  
Proceeds from dispositions of real estate properties    888,734    610,371  
Proceeds from repayment of notes receivable    —      9,695  
Investments in notes receivable backed by real estate and advances on other notes receivable    —      (55,000) 
Cash acquired in connection with AMB merger    —      234,045  
Acquisition of ProLogis European Properties (“PEPR”), net of cash received    —      (1,025,251) 
Acquisition of NAIF II, net of cash received    (317,328)   —    

  

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities    189,826    (647,860) 
  

Financing activities:    
Proceeds from issuance of common partnership units in exchange for contributions from the REIT, net    23,064    1,156,493  
Distributions paid on common partnership units    (267,099)   (129,030) 
Distributions paid on preferred units    (26,964)   (12,708) 
Noncontrolling interest contributions    36,920    —    
Noncontrolling interest distributions    (5,619)   (170) 
Purchase of noncontrolling interest    (122,019)   —    
Debt and equity issuance costs paid    (9,694)   (67,316) 
Proceeds from (payments on) credit facilities, net    220,742    (50,213) 
Proceeds from issuance of debt    1,378,119    885,453  
Payments on debt    (1,466,818)   (897,115) 

  

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities    (239,368)   885,394  
  

Effect of foreign currency exchange rate changes on cash    6,996    1,622  
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents    117,559    223,259  
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period    176,072    37,634  

  

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period   $ 293,631   $ 260,893  
  

See Note 16 for information on non-cash investing and financing activities and other information.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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 PROLOGIS, INC. AND PROLOGIS, L.P.

 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

 
1.  General
Business. On June 3, 2011, AMB Property Corporation (“AMB”) and AMB Property, LP completed the merger contemplated by the Agreement and Plan of Merger with
ProLogis, a Maryland real estate investment trust (“ProLogis”) and its subsidiaries (the “Merger”). Following the Merger, AMB changed its name to Prologis, Inc. (the
“REIT”). As a result of the Merger, each outstanding common share of beneficial interest of ProLogis was converted into 0.4464 of a newly issued share of common stock of
the REIT. As further discussed in Note 2, AMB was the legal acquirer and ProLogis was the accounting acquirer.

Prologis, Inc. commenced operations as a fully integrated real estate company in 1997, elected to be taxed as a real estate investment trust under the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended, and believes the current organization and method of operation will enable the REIT to maintain its status as a real estate investment trust. The REIT is the
general partner of Prologis, L.P. (the “Operating Partnership”). Through our controlling interest in the Operating Partnership, we are engaged in the ownership, acquisition,
development and operation of industrial properties in global, regional and other distribution markets throughout the Americas, Europe and Asia. Our current business strategy
includes two reportable business segments: Real Estate Operations and Private Capital. Our Real Estate Operations segment represents the long-term ownership of industrial
properties. Our Private Capital segment represents the long-term management of co-investment ventures and other unconsolidated entities. See Note 15 for further discussion of
our business segments. Unless otherwise indicated, the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements apply to both the REIT and the Operating Partnership. The terms “the
Company”, “Prologis”, “we”, “our” or “us” means the REIT and Operating Partnership collectively.

As of June 30, 2012, the REIT owned an approximate 99.59% common general partnership interest in the Operating Partnership, and 100% of the preferred units. The
remaining approximate 0.41% common limited partnership interest is owned by non-affiliated investors and certain current and former directors and officers of the REIT. As
the sole general partner of the Operating Partnership, the REIT has full, exclusive and complete responsibility and discretion in the day-to-day management and control of the
Operating Partnership. We operate the REIT and the Operating Partnership as one enterprise. The management of the REIT consists of the same members as the management of
the Operating Partnership. These members are officers of the REIT and employees of the Operating Partnership or one of its direct or indirect subsidiaries. As general partner
with control of the Operating Partnership, the REIT consolidates the Operating Partnership for financial reporting purposes, and the REIT does not have significant assets other
than its investment in the Operating Partnership. Therefore, the assets and liabilities of the REIT and the Operating Partnership are the same on their respective financial
statements.

Basis of Presentation. The accompanying consolidated financial statements, presented in the U.S. dollar, are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”). GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities as of the date of the financial statements and revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Our actual results could differ from those estimates and assumptions.
All material intercompany transactions with consolidated entities have been eliminated.

The accompanying unaudited interim financial information has been prepared according to the rules and regulations of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”).
Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in annual financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP have been condensed or omitted in
accordance with such rules and regulations. Our management believes that the disclosures presented in these financial statements are adequate to make the information
presented not misleading. In our opinion, all adjustments and eliminations, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, necessary to present fairly the financial position and
results of operations for both the REIT and the Operating Partnership for the reported periods have been included. The results of operations for such interim periods are not
necessarily indicative of the results for the full year. The accompanying unaudited interim financial information should be read in conjunction with the December 31, 2011
Consolidated Financial Statements of Prologis, as previously filed with the SEC on Form 10-K and other public information.

Certain amounts included in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements for 2011 have been reclassified to conform to the 2012 financial statement presentation.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements. In December 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued an accounting standard update that requires disclosures
about offsetting and related arrangements to enable financial statements users to evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting arrangements on an entity’s financial position,
including rights of setoff associated with certain financial instruments and derivative instruments. The disclosure requirements are effective for us on January 1, 2013, and we
do not expect the guidance to have a material impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

In December 2011, the FASB issued an accounting standard update to clarify the scope of current U.S. GAAP. The update clarifies that the real estate sales guidance applies to
the derecognition of a subsidiary that is in-substance real estate as a result of default on the subsidiary’s nonrecourse debt. That is, even if the reporting entity ceases to have a
controlling financial interest under the consolidation guidance, the reporting entity would continue to include the real estate, debt, and the results of the subsidiary’s operations
in its consolidated financial statements until legal title to the real estate is transferred to legally satisfy the debt. This accounting standard update is effective for us on January 1,
2013, and we do not expect the guidance to impact our Consolidated Financial Statements.

In September 2011, the FASB issued an accounting standard update to amend and simplify the rules related to testing goodwill for impairment. The update allows an entity to
make an initial qualitative evaluation, based on the entity’s events and circumstances, to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less
than its carrying amount. The results of this qualitative assessment determine whether it is necessary to perform the currently required two-step impairment test. The new
guidance is effective for annual and interim goodwill impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011. We adopted this standard as of January 1,
2012 and it has not had a material impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PROLOGIS, INC. AND PROLOGIS, L.P.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(Unaudited)

 
In June 2011, the FASB issued an accounting standard update that eliminates the option to present components of other comprehensive income as part of the changes in
stockholders’ equity, and requires the presentation of components of net income and other comprehensive income either in a single continuous statement or in two separate but
consecutive statements. This accounting standard update is effective, on a retrospective basis, for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011. We adopted
this standard as of January 1, 2012. As this standard is for presentation purposes only, it had no impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

In May 2011, the FASB issued an accounting standard update to amend the requirements in GAAP for measuring fair value and for disclosing information about fair value
measurements in order to achieve further convergence with International Financial Reporting Standards. We adopted the standard as of January 1, 2012, and the adoption of this
standard was not considered material.
 
2.  Business Combinations
Merger of AMB and ProLogis
As discussed in Note 1, we completed the Merger on June 3, 2011. After consideration of all applicable factors pursuant to the business combination accounting rules, the
Merger resulted in a reverse acquisition in which AMB was the “legal acquirer” because AMB issued its common stock to ProLogis shareholders and ProLogis was the
“accounting acquirer” due to various factors, including the fact that ProLogis shareholders held the largest portion of the voting rights in the merged entity and ProLogis
appointees represented the majority of the Board of Directors. In our Consolidated Financial Statements, the period ended June 30, 2011 includes the historical results of
ProLogis for the entire period and the results of the merged company are included subsequent to the Merger.
The purchase price allocation reflects aggregate consideration of approximately $5.9 billion. The allocation of the purchase price requires a significant amount of judgment and
was based on our valuation, estimates and assumptions of the acquisition date fair value of the tangible and intangible assets and liabilities acquired.

Acquisition of ProLogis European Properties
During the second quarter of 2011, we increased our ownership of ProLogis European Properties (“PEPR”) through open market purchases and a mandatory tender offer. In
May 2011, we settled our mandatory tender offer that resulted in the acquisition of an additional 96.5 million ordinary units and 2.7 million convertible preferred units of
PEPR. During all of the second quarter of 2011, we made aggregate cash purchases totaling €715.8 million ($1.0 billion). We funded the purchases through borrowings under
our global line of credit and a new €500 million bridge facility, which was subsequently repaid with proceeds from an equity offering in June 2011.

Upon completion of the tender offer, we met the requirements to consolidate PEPR. In accordance with the accounting rules for business combinations, we marked our equity
investment in PEPR from carrying value to fair value of approximately €486 million, which resulted in the recognition of a gain of €59.6 million ($85.9 million). We refer to this
transaction as the “PEPR Acquisition”. The fair value was based on the trading price for our previously owned units and our acquisition price for the PEPR units purchased
during the tender offer period.

We have allocated the aggregate purchase price, representing the share of PEPR we owned at the time of consolidation of €1.1 billion ($1.6 billion). The allocation of the
purchase price requires a significant amount of judgment and was based on our valuation, estimates and assumptions of the acquisition date fair value of the tangible and
intangible assets and liabilities acquired.

Pro forma Information
The following unaudited pro forma financial information presents our results as though the Merger and the PEPR Acquisition, as well as the equity offering in June 2011 that
was used, in part, to repay the loans used to fund the PEPR Acquisition, had been consummated as of January 1, 2010. The pro forma information does not necessarily reflect
the actual results of operations had the transactions been consummated at the beginning of the period indicated nor is it necessarily indicative of future operating results. The pro
forma information does not give effect to any cost synergies or other operating efficiencies that had resulted or could result from the Merger and also does not include any
merger and integration expenses. The results for the three and six months ended June 30, 2011 include approximately one month of actual results for both the Merger and PEPR
Acquisition, and pro forma adjustments for two and five months, respectively. Actual results in 2011 include rental income and rental expenses of the properties acquired
through the Merger and PEPR Acquisition of $84.7 million and $19.6 million, respectively.
 

   Three Months Ended  Six Months Ended 
   June 30,   June 30,  
(amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)   2011   2011  
Total revenues   $ 505,023   $ 992,653  
Net loss available for stockholders   $ (59,172)  $ (110,512) 
Net loss per share available for common stockholders - basic   $ (0.13)  $ (0.24) 
Net loss per share available for common stockholders - diluted   $ (0.13)  $ (0.24) 

  

These results include certain adjustments, primarily decreased revenues resulting from the amortization of the net asset from the acquired leases with favorable or unfavorable
rents relative to estimated market rents, increased depreciation and amortization expense resulting from the adjustment of real estate assets to estimated fair value and
recognition of intangible assets related to in-place leases and acquired management contracts and lower interest expense due to the accretion of the fair value adjustment of debt.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(Unaudited)

 
Acquisitions of Unconsolidated Co-Investment Ventures
On February 3, 2012, we acquired our partner’s 63% interest in and now own 100% of our previously unconsolidated co-investment venture Prologis North American Industrial
Fund II (“NAIF II”) and we repaid the loan from NAIF II to our partner for a total of $336.1 million. The assets and liabilities of this venture, as well as the activity since the
acquisition date, have been included in our Consolidated Financial Statements. In accordance with the accounting rules for business combinations, we marked our equity
investment in NAIF II from its carrying value to the estimated fair value. The fair value was determined and allocated based on our valuation, estimates, and assumptions of the
acquisition date fair value of the tangible and intangible assets and liabilities. The preliminary allocation of net assets acquired is approximately $1.6 billion in real estate assets,
$31.7 million of net other assets, and $875.4 million in debt. We have not recorded a gain or loss with this transaction, as the carrying value of our investment was equal to the
estimated fair value. While the current allocation of the purchase price is substantially complete, the valuation of the real estate properties is being finalized. We do not expect
future revisions, if any, to have a significant impact on our financial position or results of operations.

On February 22, 2012, we dissolved the unconsolidated co-investment venture Prologis California (“Prologis California”) and divided the portfolio equally with our partner.
The net value of the assets and liabilities distributed represents the fair value of our ownership interest in the co-investment venture on that date. In accordance with the
accounting rules for business combinations, we marked our equity investment in Prologis California from its carrying value to the estimated fair value which resulted in a gain
of $273.0 million. The gain is recorded in Gains on Acquisitions and Dispositions of Investments in Real Estate, Net in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The fair
value was determined and allocated based on our valuation, estimates, and assumptions of the acquisition date fair value of the tangible and intangible assets and liabilities. The
preliminary allocation of net assets acquired is approximately $496.3 million in real estate assets, $17.7 million of net other assets, and $150.0 million in debt. While the current
allocation of the purchase price is substantially complete, the valuation of the real estate properties is being finalized. We do not expect future revisions, if any, to have a
significant impact on our financial position or results of operations.

We refer to these two transactions collectively as “Q1 Venture Acquisitions”. Our results for 2012 include rental income and rental expenses of the properties acquired in the Q1
Venture Acquisitions of $77.8 million and $18.9 million, respectively.
 
3.  Real Estate
Investments in real estate properties are presented at cost, and consist of the following (in thousands):
 
   June 30,    December 31,  
   2012    2011  
Industrial operating properties (1):     

Improved land   $ 5,525,407    $ 4,813,145  
Buildings and improvements    17,916,987     16,739,403  

Development portfolio, including cost of land (2)    656,561     860,531  
Land (3)    1,881,062     1,984,233  
Other real estate investments (4)    442,280     390,225  

    

Total investments in real estate properties    26,422,297     24,787,537  
Less accumulated depreciation    2,256,101     2,157,907  

    

Net investments in properties   $24,166,196    $ 22,629,630  
    

 
(1) At June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, we had 1,927 and 1,797 industrial properties consisting of 328.0 million square feet and 291.1 million square feet, respectively.

Included at June 30, 2012 were 180 properties totaling $2.1 billion that were acquired in connection with the Q1 Venture Acquisitions.
(2) At June 30, 2012, the development portfolio consisted of 30 properties aggregating 10.6 million square feet. At December 31, 2011, we had 30 properties aggregating

9.5 million square feet in the development portfolio. Our total expected investment upon completion of the properties currently in the development portfolio at June 30,
2012 was $1.0 billion, including land, development and leasing costs.

(3) Land consisted of 10,508 acres and 10,723 acres at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively, and included land parcels that we may develop or sell depending
on market conditions and other factors.

(4) Included in other investments are: (i) certain non-industrial real estate; (ii) our corporate office buildings; (iii) land ground leased to third parties; (iv) certain infrastructure
costs related to projects we are developing on behalf of others; (v) costs related to future development projects, including purchase options on land; and (vi) earnest money
deposits associated with potential acquisitions.

At June 30, 2012, excluding our assets held for sale, we owned real estate assets on a consolidated basis in the Americas (Canada, Mexico and the United States), Europe
(Austria, Belgium, the Czech Republic, France, Germany, Hungary, Italy, the Netherlands, Poland, Romania, Slovakia, Spain, Sweden and the United Kingdom) and Asia
(China, Japan and Singapore).

During the six months ended June 30, 2012, we acquired eight operating buildings aggregating 0.9 million square feet for $42.5 million and 167 acres of land for a total of
$27.1 million. We also contributed one property aggregating 0.1 million square feet to Europe Logistics Venture I.

See Note 6 for further discussion of properties we sold to third parties that are reported in discontinued operations.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(Unaudited)

 
During the six months ended June 30, 2012, we recorded an impairment charge of $16.1 million related to the land received in 2011 in exchange for a note receivable. This
impairment was recorded in Impairment of Other Assets in our Consolidated Financial Statements.
 
4.  Unconsolidated Entities
Summary of Investments
We have investments in entities through a variety of ventures. We co-invest in entities that own multiple properties with private capital investors and provide asset and property
management services to these entities. We refer to these entities as co-investment ventures. Our ownership interest in these entities generally ranges from 15-50%. These entities
may be consolidated or unconsolidated, depending on the structure, our partner’s rights and participation and our level of control of the entity. This Note details our
unconsolidated co-investment ventures. See Note 10 for more detail regarding our consolidated investments.

We also have investments in other joint ventures, generally with one partner and that we do not manage. We refer to our investments in the entities accounted for on the equity
method, both unconsolidated co-investment ventures and other joint ventures, as unconsolidated entities.

Our investments in and advances to our unconsolidated entities are summarized below (in thousands):
 

   June 30,    December 31,  
   2012    2011  
Unconsolidated co-investment ventures   $1,943,843      $2,471,179  
Other joint ventures    276,329       386,576  

      

Totals   $2,220,172      $2,857,755  
      

Unconsolidated Co-Investment Ventures
As of June 30, 2012, we had investments in and managed 13 unconsolidated co-investment ventures that own portfolios of operating industrial properties and may also develop
properties. Private capital revenue includes revenues we earn for the management services we provide to unconsolidated entities and certain third parties. These fees are
recognized as earned and may include property and asset management fees or transactional fees for leasing, acquisition, construction, financing, legal and tax services. We may
also earn promote payments based on the third party investor returns over time. In addition, we may earn fees for services provided to develop a building within the co-
investment venture. These are reflected as Development Management and Other Income in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Summarized information regarding our investments in the co-investment ventures is as follows (in thousands):
 

   Three Months Ended    Six Months Ended  
   June 30,    June 30,  
   2012   2011    2012   2011  
Earnings (loss) from unconsolidated co-investment ventures:       
Americas (1)   $ (6,749)  $ 2,004    $ (4,466)  $ 4,626  
Europe    7,172    5,679     15,169    14,770  
Asia    730    960     2,208    1,169  

    

Total earnings from unconsolidated co-investment ventures, net   $ 1,153   $ 8,643    $12,911   $20,565  
    

Private capital revenue and other income:       
Americas   $16,081   $14,238    $33,604   $27,444  
Europe    9,325    13,806     18,462    27,131  
Asia    5,088    2,343     9,842    2,536  

    

Total private capital revenue    30,494    30,387     61,908    57,111  
Development management and other income    2    4,042     78    5,943  

    

Total   $30,496   $34,429    $61,986   $63,054  
    

 
(1) During the three and six months ended June 30, 2012, we recorded a $5.0 million loss representing our share of a loss from the early extinguishment of debt in Prologis

North American Industrial Fund III (“Prologis NAIII”).

We completed the Merger and PEPR Acquisition in the second quarter of 2011. During the first quarter of 2012, we also acquired one of our unconsolidated co-investment
ventures and dissolved another, both located in the Americas. Therefore 2011 may not be comparable to 2012. See Note 2 for more information on these transactions.

Private capital revenue included fees and incentives we earn for services provided to our unconsolidated co-investment ventures (shown above), as well as fees earned from
other unconsolidated entities and third parties of $0.5 million and $1.5 million during the three and six months ended June 30, 2012, respectively and $2.6 million and $5.7
million during the three and six months ended June 30, 2011, respectively.
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Information about our investments in the co-investment ventures is as follows (dollars in thousands):
 

   
Weighted Average Ownership

Percentage   Investment in and Advances to  
   June 30,   December 31,   June 30,    December 31, 
Unconsolidated co-investment ventures by region   2012   2011   2012    2011  
Americas    24.3%   28.2%  $1,119,279    $1,596,295  
Europe    30.4%   29.9%   633,674     662,010  
Asia    19.3%   19.4%   190,890     212,874  

    

Totals    25.7%   27.9%  $1,943,843    $2,471,179  
    

Summarized financial information of the co-investment ventures (for the entire entity, not our proportionate share) and our investment in such ventures is presented below
(dollars in millions):
 

2012   Americas   Europe   Asia   Total  
For the three months ended June 30, 2012 (1):      

Revenues   $ 185.8   $ 120.9   $ 35.0   $ 341.7  
Net earnings (loss) (2)   $ (28.0)  $ 24.3   $ (0.9)  $ (4.6) 

For the six months ended June 30, 2012: (1)      
Revenues   $ 396.2   $ 245.9   $ 69.8   $ 711.9  
Net earnings (loss) (2)   $ (38.1)  $ 48.0   $ 4.7   $ 14.6  

As of June 30, 2012:      
Total assets   $ 9,603.7   $5,967.7   $2,080.1   $17,651.5  
Amounts due to (from) us (3)   $ 6.8   $ 8.0   $ 10.0   $ 24.8  
Third party debt (4)   $ 3,954.3   $2,114.0   $1,034.4   $ 7,102.7  
Total liabilities   $ 4,268.6   $2,638.2   $1,135.9   $ 8,042.7  
Noncontrolling interest   $ 0.1   $ 5.8   $ —     $ 5.9  
Venture partners’ equity   $ 5,335.0   $3,323.7   $ 944.2   $ 9,602.9  
Our weighted average ownership (5)    24.3%   30.4%   19.3%   25.7% 
Our investment balance (6)   $ 1,119.3   $ 633.7   $ 190.9   $ 1,943.9  
Deferred gains, net of amortization (7)   $ 155.0   $ 181.4   $ —     $ 336.4  

  

2011   Americas   Europe   Asia   Total  
For the three months ended June 30, 2011 (1):      

Revenues   $ 195.1   $ 169.4   $ 15.1   $ 379.6  
Net earnings (loss)   $ (15.4)  $ 17.3   $ 3.5   $ 5.4  

For the six months ended June 30, 2011 (1):      
Revenues   $ 368.4   $ 359.8   $ 18.1   $ 746.3  
Net earnings (loss)   $ (29.9)  $ 37.8   $ 4.6   $ 12.5  

As of December 31, 2011:      
Total assets   $12,236.0   $6,211.8   $2,245.1   $20,692.9  
Amounts due to (from) us (3)   $ 59.5   $ 8.1   $ 9.3   $ 76.9  
Third party debt (4)   $ 5,952.8   $2,275.8   $1,061.4   $ 9,290.0  
Total liabilities   $ 6,386.4   $2,758.9   $1,174.0   $10,319.3  
Noncontrolling interest   $ 1.7   $ 6.2   $ —     $ 7.9  
Venture partners’ equity   $ 5,847.9   $3,446.7   $1,071.1   $10,365.7  
Our weighted average ownership (5)    28.2%   29.9%   19.4%   27.9% 
Our investment balance (6)   $ 1,596.3   $ 662.0   $ 212.9   $ 2,471.2  
Deferred gains, net of amortization (7)   $ 227.6   $ 191.0   $ 0.1   $ 418.7  

  

 
(1) During the first quarter of 2012, we began consolidating two of our North America co-investment ventures whose results are included through the transaction date. During

the three and six months ended June 30, 2011, amounts include approximately two and five months of activity, respectively, for PEPR while accounted for on the equity
method and approximately one month of activity from the investments acquired through the Merger. See Note 2 for more details of these transactions.

(2) During the second quarter of 2012, Prologis NAIII settled debt before maturity by transferring the secured properties to the lender in lieu of payment and triggered the
write-off of the related derivative balance in other comprehensive income of $25.1 million (Prologis share was $5.0 million).

(3) At December 31, 2011, we had notes receivable aggregating $41.2 million from Prologis NAIII ($21.4 million) and Prologis SGP Mexico ($19.8 million). In February
2012, Prologis NAIII restructured the loan payable to us and our partner into equity according to our ownership percentages. As of June 30, 2012, we have one note
receivable from Prologis SGP Mexico of $19.8 million. The remaining amounts represent current balances from services provided by us to the co-investment ventures.
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(4) As discussed in Note 2, debt was reduced by $1.4 billion related to the consolidation of two unconsolidated co-investment ventures during the first quarter of 2012. As of

June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, we guaranteed $28.0 million of the third party debt of certain unconsolidated ventures. As of December 31, 2011, we had pledged
properties included in our Real Estate Operations segment with an undepreciated cost of approximately $277.0 million, to serve as additional collateral for the secured
mortgage loan of NAIF II payable to an affiliate of our venture partner. In connection with the acquisition of our partner’s interest in February 2012, we repaid this loan,
and these assets are no longer pledged.

(5) Represents our weighted average ownership interest in all co-investment ventures based on each entity’s contribution to total assets, before depreciation, net of other
liabilities.

(6) The difference between our ownership interest of the venture’s equity and our investment balance results principally from three types of transactions: (i) deferring a
portion of the gains we recognize from a contribution of one of our properties to the venture (see next footnote); (ii) recording additional costs associated with our
investment in the venture; and (iii) advances to the venture.

(7) This amount is recorded as a reduction to our investment and represents the gains that were deferred when we contributed a property to a venture due to our continuing
ownership in the property.

Equity Commitments Related to Certain Unconsolidated Co-Investment Ventures
Certain unconsolidated co-investment ventures have equity commitments from us and our venture partners. We may fulfill our equity commitment through contributions of
properties or cash. Our venture partners fulfill their equity commitment with cash. We are committed to offer to contribute certain properties that we develop and stabilize in
select markets in Europe and Mexico to certain ventures. These ventures are committed to acquire such properties, subject to certain exceptions, including that the properties
meet certain specified leasing and other criteria, and that the ventures have available capital. We are not obligated to contribute properties at a loss. Depending on market
conditions, the investment objectives of the ventures, our liquidity needs and other factors, we may make contributions of properties to these ventures through the remaining
commitment period.

The following table is a summary of remaining equity commitments as of June 30, 2012 (in millions):
 

   Equity commitments   
Expiration date for remaining

commitments
Prologis Targeted U.S. Logistics Fund (1)     

Prologis   $ —      Open-Ended (1)
Venture Partners   $ 137.5    

    

Prologis SGP Mexico (2)     
Prologis   $ 24.6    (2)
Venture Partner   $ 98.1    

    

Europe Logistics Venture 1 (3)     
Prologis   $ 75.6    February 2014
Venture Partner   $ 428.7    

    

Prologis China Logistics Venture 1     
Prologis   $ 71.0    March 2015
Venture Partner   $ 402.1    

    

Total     
Prologis   $ 171.2    
Venture Partners   $ 1,066.4    

    

 
(1) We secured $265.5 million in commitments from third parties in 2012 in order to fund future acquisitions from us and third parties that meet the venture’s investment

strategy, or to pay down existing debt. During the second quarter of 2012, the venture called capital of $128.0 million from these investors to pay down existing debt. The
venture called an additional $55.0 million from these investors in July primarily to pay down existing debt.

(2) These equity commitments will be called only if needed to pay outstanding debt of the venture. The relevant debt is due in the third quarter of 2012, with an option to
extend until the third quarter of 2013.

(3) Equity commitments are denominated in euro and reported above in U.S. dollar. During the first quarter of 2012, this co-investment venture acquired two buildings with
proceeds from commitments previously called. In addition, in the first quarter of 2012, the venture called capital of $14.3 million from our partner to cover the acquisition
of one property from us.

Other Joint Ventures
Our investments in and advances to these entities are as follows (in thousands):
 

   June 30,    December 31, 
   2012    2011  
Americas (1)   $196,366    $ 305,352  
Europe    50,237     50,474  
Asia    29,726     30,750  

    

Total investments in and advances to other joint ventures   $276,329    $ 386,576  
    

 
(1) During the second quarter of 2012, we received $95.0 million, which represented a return of capital from one of our joint ventures that held a note receivable that was

repaid in full during the quarter.
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5.  Notes Receivable Backed by Real Estate
The activity on the notes receivable backed by real estate for the six months ended June 30, 2012 is as follows (in thousands):
 

   

$188 million
Preferred

Equity Interest   

$55 million
Preferred

Equity Interest  

NAIF II
Secured

Mortgage
Receivable (1)  Total  

Balance as of December 31, 2011   $ 188,000    $ 55,970   $ 78,864   $322,834  
Elimination upon acquisition of NAIF II    —       —      (78,864)   (78,864) 
Accrued interest/(interest payments received), net    1,694     (10)   —      1,684  

    

Balance as of June 30, 2012   $ 189,694    $ 55,960   $ —     $245,654  
    

 
(1) The balance as of December 31, 2011 represented a loan to NAIF II secured by 12 buildings. In February 2012, we purchased the remaining interest in NAIF II. As a

result, we began consolidating this entity and eliminated this note receivable. See Note 2 for more detail on this transaction.
 
6.  Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
Held for Sale
As of June 30, 2012, we had land and five operating properties that met the criteria to be classified as held for sale. The amounts included in held for sale as of June 30, 2012
represent real estate investment balances and the related assets and liabilities for each property.

Discontinued Operations
During the six months ended June 30, 2012, we disposed of land subject to ground leases and 95 operating properties aggregating 11.9 million square feet to third parties.
During all of 2011, we disposed of land subject to ground leases and 94 properties aggregating 10.7 million square feet to third parties.

The operations of the properties held for sale or disposed of to third parties and the aggregate net gains recognized upon their disposition are presented as Discontinued
Operations in our Consolidated Statements of Operations for all periods presented. Interest expense is included in discontinued operations only if it is directly attributable to
these properties.

Discontinued operations are summarized as follows (in thousands):
 

   Three Months Ended   Six Months Ended  
   June 30,   June 30,  
   2012   2011   2012   2011  
Rental income   $ 4,784   $18,613   $19,790   $ 39,345  
Rental expenses    (2,484)   (3,929)   (5,855)   (10,418) 
Depreciation and amortization expense    (1,008)   (5,157)   (4,962)   (9,366) 
Other expenses    (95)   (143)   (160)   (178) 

  

Income attributable to disposed properties and assets held for sale    1,197    9,384    8,813    19,383  
Net gains on dispositions    9,874    10,834    21,123    14,710  
Impairment charges     (2,659)    (2,659) 
Income tax on dispositions    —      —      —      (1,916) 

  

Total discontinued operations   $11,071   $17,559   $29,936   $ 29,518  
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The following information relates to properties disposed of during the periods presented and recorded as discontinued operations, including adjustments to previous dispositions
for actual versus estimated selling costs (dollars in thousands):
 

   Three Months Ended    Six Months Ended  
   June 30,    June 30,  
   2012    2011    2012    2011  
Number of properties    25     5     95     38  
Net proceeds from dispositions   $161,577    $176,213    $848,542    $567,990  
Net gains from dispositions, net of taxes   $ 9,874    $ 10,834    $ 21,123    $ 12,794  

        

 
7.  Debt
All debt is held directly or indirectly by the Operating Partnership. The REIT itself does not have any indebtedness, but guarantees the unsecured debt of the Operating
Partnership. We generally do not guarantee the debt issued by non-wholly owned subsidiaries.

Our debt consisted of the following (dollars in thousands):
 

   June 30, 2012    December 31, 2011  

   
Weighted Average
Interest Rate (1)   

Amount
Outstanding    

Weighted
Average  Interest

Rate (1)   
Amount

Outstanding  
Credit Facilities    1.66%  $ 1,138,414     2.17%  $ 936,796  
Senior notes (2)    5.74%   4,684,152     6.30%   4,772,607  
Exchangeable senior notes (3)    4.56%   877,776     4.82%   1,315,448  
Secured mortgage debt    3.78%   3,115,437     4.71%   1,699,363  
Secured mortgage debt of consolidated entities    4.49%   1,366,837     4.54%   1,495,047  
Other debt of consolidated entities    4.45%   602,938     5.30%   775,763  
Other debt    2.15%   648,031     2.44%   387,384  

    

Totals    4.35%  $12,433,585     5.12%  $11,382,408  
    

 
(1) The interest rates presented represent the effective interest rates (including amortization of the non-cash premiums or discount).
(2) In April 2012, we repaid $58.9 million of senior unsecured notes at maturity.
(3) The weighted average coupon interest rate was 2.8% as of June 30, 2012 and 2.6% as of December 31, 2011.

Credit Facilities
We have a global senior credit facility (“Global Facility”), where funds may be drawn in U.S. dollar, euro, Japanese yen, British pound sterling and Canadian dollar on a
revolving basis. The loans cannot exceed $1.71 billion (subject to currency fluctuations). We may increase the Global Facility to $2.75 billion, subject to currency fluctuations
and obtaining additional lender commitments. The Global Facility is scheduled to mature on June 3, 2015, but the Operating Partnership may, at its option and subject to the
satisfaction of certain conditions and payment of an extension fee, extend the maturity date to June 3, 2016. Pricing under the Global Facility, including the spread over LIBOR,
facility fees and letter of credit fees, varies based upon the public debt ratings of the Operating Partnership. The Global Facility contains customary representations, covenants
and defaults (including a cross-acceleration to other recourse indebtedness of more than $50 million).

We also have a ¥36.5 billion (approximately $459 million at June 30, 2012) yen revolver (the “Revolver”). The Revolver matures on March 1, 2014, but we may, at our option
and subject to the satisfaction of customary conditions and payment of an extension fee, extend the maturity date to February 27, 2015. We may increase availability under the
Revolver to an amount not exceeding ¥56.5 billion (approximately $710 million at June 30, 2012) subject to obtaining additional lender commitments. Pricing under the
Revolver is consistent with the Global Facility pricing. The Revolver contains certain customary representations, covenants and defaults that are substantially the same as the
corresponding provisions of the Global Facility.

We refer to the Global Facility and the Revolver, collectively, as our “Credit Facilities”.

Commitments and availability under our Credit Facilities as of June 30, 2012 were as follows (dollars in millions):
 

Aggregate lender - commitments   $ 2,146.6  
Less:   
Borrowings outstanding    1,138.4  
Outstanding letters of credit    67.4  

  

Current availability   $ 940.8  
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Exchangeable Senior Notes
In connection with the Merger and exchange offer, our convertible senior notes became exchangeable senior notes issued by the Operating Partnership that are exchangeable
into common stock of the REIT. As a result, the accounting for the exchangeable senior notes now requires us to separate the fair value of the derivative instrument (exchange
feature) from the debt instrument and account for it separately as a derivative contract. We have determined that the exchangeable notes issued in 2010 are the only
exchangeable notes where the fair value of the derivative is not zero at June 30, 2012, therefore this modification in accounting for the exchangeable notes only affected these
notes. At each reporting period, we adjust the derivative instrument to fair value with the resulting adjustment being recorded in earnings as Foreign Currency Exchange and
Derivative Gains (Losses), Net. The fair value of the derivative associated with our exchangeable notes was a liability of $29.9 million and $17.5 million at June 30, 2012 and
December 31, 2011, respectively. We have recognized an unrealized gain of $14.4 million and an unrealized loss of $12.4 million for the three and six months ended June 30,
2012, respectively.

We redeemed $448.9 million of the exchangeable notes issued in 2007 in April 2012, which was when the holders had the right to require us to repurchase their notes for cash.

Secured Mortgage Debt
TMK bonds are a financing vehicle in Japan for special purpose companies known as TMKs. In 2012, we issued ¥35.6 billion ($447.0 million as of June 30, 2012) of new TMK
bonds with maturity dates ranging from March 2017 to May 2019 with interest rates ranging from 0.8% to 1.4%, and secured by eight properties with an undepreciated cost at
June 30, 2012 of $799.2 million.

In addition, we amended our existing TMK bonds, increasing amounts outstanding by ¥12.4 billion ($156.5 million as of June 30, 2012). As a result, the range of maturities on
these bonds changed from 2012 to 2014 to a range of December 2014 to April 2018, and the interest rates were reduced from a range of 1.8% to 3.95% to a range of 1.0% to
1.8%.

In the first quarter of 2012 in connection with the acquisition of NAIF II (see Note 2 for more details), we have assumed additional mortgage debt of $875.4 million, with
maturity dates ranging from September 2012 to December 2018. Subsequent to the acquisition, we have paid down a portion of outstanding debt and reduced the balance to
$720.2 million, secured by 90 properties with an undepreciated cost of $1.1 billion at June 30, 2012.

In the first quarter of 2012 in connection with the acquisition of our share of Prologis California (See Note 2 for more details), we assumed additional mortgage debt of $150.0
million payable in 2014 and secured by 24 properties with an undepreciated cost of $318.8 million at June 30, 2012.

Secured Mortgage Debt of Consolidated Entities
On June 20, 2012, one of our consolidated co-investment ventures incurred $23.0 million of secured mortgage debt including $13.0 million at 4.50% due December 2016 and
$10.0 million at 4.78% due December 2018. This debt is secured by four real estate properties with an aggregate undepreciated cost of $40.6 million at June 30, 2012.

Other Debt
On February 2, 2012, we entered into a senior term loan agreement where we may obtain loans in an aggregate amount not to exceed €487.5 million ($619.3 million at June 30,
2012). The loans can be obtained in U.S. dollar, euro, Japanese yen, and British pound sterling. We may increase the borrowings to approximately €987.5 million ($1.3 billion
at June 30, 2012), subject to obtaining additional lender commitments. The loan agreement is scheduled to mature on February 2, 2014, but we may extend the maturity date
three times at our option, in each case up to one year, subject to satisfaction of certain conditions and payment of an extension fee. We used the proceeds of the entire senior
term loan to pay off the existing two term loans assumed in connection with the Merger and the remainder to pay down credit facilities.

Long-Term Debt Maturities
Principal payments due on our debt, for the remainder of 2012 and for each of the years in the ten-year period ending December 31, 2021 and thereafter are as follows (in
millions):
 
   Prologis          
   Unsecured    Secured        Consolidated   Total  
   Senior    Exchangeable  Credit    Other    Mortgage       Entities’    Consolidated 
Maturity   Debt    Notes   Facilities   Debt    Debt    Total    Debt    Debt  
2012(1)(2)   $ —      $ —     $ —      $ 1    $ 12    $ 13    $ 54    $ 67  
2013(2)    376     482    —       1     114     973     628     1,601  
2014    374     —      280     631     666     1,951     1,035     2,986  
2015    287     460    858     1     212     1,818     22     1,840  
2016    640     —      —       1     316     957     123     1,080  
2017    700     —      —       1     570     1,271     3     1,274  
2018    900     —      —       1     325     1,226     73     1,299  
2019    647     —      —       1     522     1,170     —       1,170  
2020    687     —      —       1     9     697     1     698  
2021    —       —      —       —       167     167     1     168  
Thereafter    —       10    —       10     144     164     1     165  

              

Subtotal    4,611     952    1,138     649     3,057     10,407     1,941     12,348  
Unamortized (discounts) premiums, net    74     (74)   —       —       58     58     28     86  

              

Total   $4,685    $ 878   $ 1,138    $649    $ 3,115    $10,465    $ 1,969    $ 12,434  
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(1) We expect to repay the amounts maturing in 2012 related to our wholly owned debt with cash generated from operations. The maturities in 2012 in our consolidated but

not wholly owned subsidiaries principally include $14.1 million of unsecured credit facilities and $28.1 million of secured mortgage debt, which we expect to extend, or
pay, through the issuance of new debt, with proceeds from asset sales, available cash, or equity contributions to the funds by us and our venture partner.

(2) The maturities in 2013 include the aggregate principal amounts of the exchangeable senior notes issued in 2007 and 2008, as this is when the holders first have the right to
require us to repurchase their notes for cash.

Debt Covenants
Our debt agreements contain various covenants, including maintenance of specified financial ratios. As of June 30, 2012 we were in compliance with all covenants.
 
8.  Other Liabilities:
Other liabilities consisted of the following, net of amortization, if applicable, as of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 (in thousands):
 

   June 30,    December 31, 
   2012    2011  
Income tax liabilities   $ 600,902    $ 634,790  
Tenant security deposits    174,100     158,544  
Unearned rents    111,978     115,093  
Lease intangible assets    68,794     68,256  
Deferred income    48,198     52,045  
Environmental    37,353     40,206  
Value added tax and other tax liabilities    24,816     42,895  
Other    127,338     113,719  

    

Totals   $1,193,479    $1,225,548  
    

 
9.  Stockholders’ Equity of the REIT and Partners’ Capital of the Operating Partnership
Operating Partnership
For each share of common stock or preferred stock the REIT issues, the Operating Partnership issues a corresponding common or preferred partnership unit, as applicable, to
the REIT in exchange for the contribution of the proceeds from the stock issuance. In addition, other third parties and certain current and former directors and officers of the
REIT own common limited partnership units that make up approximately 0.41% of the common partnership units.

Preferred Stock of the REIT
We had the following preferred stock issued and outstanding (in thousands, except per share and par value data):
 

   June 30,    December 31, 
   2012    2011  
Series L Preferred stock at stated liquidation preference of $25 per share; $0.01 par value; 2,000

shares   $ 49,100    $ 49,100  
Series M Preferred stock at stated liquidation preference of $25 per share; $0.01 par value;

2,300 shares    57,500     57,500  
Series O Preferred stock at stated liquidation preference of $25 per share; $0.01 par value;

3,000 shares    75,300     75,300  
Series P Preferred stock at stated liquidation preference of $25 per share; $0.01 par value; 2,000

shares    50,300     50,300  
Series Q Preferred stock at stated liquidation preference of $50 per share; $0.01 par value;

2,000 shares    100,000     100,000  
Series R Preferred stock at stated liquidation preference of $25 per share; $0.01 par value;

5,000 shares    125,000     125,000  
Series S Preferred stock at stated liquidation preference of $25 per share; $0.01 par value; 5,000

shares    125,000     125,000  
    

Total preferred stock   $582,200    $ 582,200  
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The holders of the preferred stock have preference rights with respect to distributions and liquidation over the common stock and certain rights in the case of arrearage. Holders
of the preferred stock are not entitled to vote on any matters, except under certain limited circumstances. The series L, M, O, P, R and S preferred stock are redeemable solely at
our option, in whole or in part. The series Q preferred stock will be redeemable at our option on and after November 13, 2026.
 
10.  Noncontrolling Interests
Operating Partnership
We report noncontrolling interest related to several entities we consolidate but do not own 100% of the common equity. These entities include three real estate partnerships that
have issued limited partnership units to third parties. Depending on the specific partnership agreements, these limited partnership units are exchangeable into shares of our
common stock (or cash), generally at a rate of one share of common stock to one unit. We evaluated the noncontrolling interests with redemption provisions that permit the
issuer to settle in either cash or common stock at the option of the issuer to determine whether temporary or permanent equity classification on the balance sheet is appropriate,
including the requirement to settle in unregistered shares, and determined that these units meet the requirements to qualify for presentation as permanent equity.
We also consolidate several entities in which we do not own 100% but the units are not exchangeable into our common stock. If we contribute a property to a consolidated co-
investment venture, the property is still reflected in our Consolidated Financial Statements, but due to our ownership of less than 100%, there is an increase in noncontrolling
interest related to the contributed properties, which represents the cash we receive from our partners.

REIT
The noncontrolling interest of the REIT includes the noncontrolling interests presented in the Operating Partnership, as well as the common limited partnership units in the
Operating Partnership that are not owned by the REIT. As of June 30, 2012, the REIT owned approximately 99.59% of the common partnership units of the Operating
Partnership.

The following is a summary of the noncontrolling interest and the consolidated entity’s total investment in real estate and debt at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 (dollars
in thousands):
 

  
Our Ownership

Percentage   
Noncontrolling

Interests   

Consolidated Entity
Total Investment In

Real Estate   Consolidated Entity Debt  
  2012   2011   2012   2011   2012   2011   2012   2011  
Partnerships with exchangeable units (1)   various    various   $ 43,301   $ 11,173   $ 831,795   $ 827,263   $ 26,417   $ 26,417  
Prologis Institutional Alliance Fund II (2)   28.2%   24.1%   302,851    324,721    599,789    624,318    198,332    220,625  
PEPR (3)   99.5%   93.7%   9,968    106,759    3,621,172    4,047,329    1,390,917    1,699,587  
Mexico Fondo Logistico (AFORES) (4)   20.0%   20.0%   139,180    118,580    376,033    312,914    212,577    177,000  
Prologis AMS (5)   38.6%   38.5%   62,143    83,897    175,064    211,627    75,535    77,041  
Other consolidated entities   various    various    91,946    90,092    577,125    620,052    65,998    70,140  
Operating Partnership noncontrolling interests     649,389    735,222    6,180,978    6,643,503    1,969,776    2,270,810  
Limited partners in the Operating Partnership (6)     53,207    58,613    —      —      —      —    
REIT noncontrolling interests    $702,596   $793,835   $6,180,978   $6,643,503   $1,969,776   $2,270,810  
 
(1) At June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, there were 1,285,312 and 1,302,238 limited partnership units, respectively, that were exchangeable into an equal number of

shares of the REIT’s common stock. In the first quarter of 2012, 16,926 limited partnership units were exchanged for cash. The majority of the outstanding limited
partnership units are entitled to quarterly cash distributions equal to the quarterly dividends paid on our common stock. In 2012, we recorded an additional purchase
accounting adjustment of $32.9 million associated with the Merger.

(2) In the second quarter of 2012, we purchased an additional interest in the fund from one of our partners for $14.1 million increasing our ownership to 28.2%.
(3) In the second quarter of 2012, we increased our ownership of PEPR up to 99.5%. In June 2012, the unitholders of PEPR passed a resolution to wind-up the entity in August

2012, pursuant to which we opted for in-kind distribution of assets and will assume responsibility for all liabilities of PEPR. In the first quarter of 2012, PEPR sold land
under a ground lease and 18 properties aggregating 3,670 million square feet for $342.3 million to third parties, and subsequently paid down $263.9 million of outstanding
debt with proceeds from these dispositions.
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(4) In the second quarter of 2012, we contributed four properties aggregating 0.8 million square feet to this entity for $40.6 million. As this entity is consolidated, we did not

record a gain on this transaction and the noncontrolling interests increased $15.7 million, which is primarily due to our partners’ investment in cash.
(5) In 2012, we recorded additional purchase accounting adjustments of $22.7 million associated with the Merger.
(6) At June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, 1,902,108 and 2,058,730 units were associated with the common limited partners in the Operating Partnership and exchangeable

into an equal number of shares of the REIT’s common stock. During the six months ended June 30, 2012, 156,622 units were exchanged for cash in the amount of $5.5
million. The majority of the outstanding limited partnership units are entitled to quarterly cash distributions equal to the quarterly distributions paid on our common stock.

 
11.  Long-Term Compensation
Under its incentive plans, Prologis had stock options and full value awards (restricted stock, restricted share units (“RSUs”) and performance based shares (“PSAs”)).

Summary of Activity
The activity for the six months ended June 30, 2012, with respect to our stock options, was as follows:
 

   Options Outstanding      

   Number of Options  
Weighted Average

Exercise Price    Options Exercisable 
Balance at December 31, 2011    9,879,960   $ 34.93    
Exercised    (1,050,158)   22.28    
Forfeited    (113,917)   43.79    

    

Balance at June 30, 2012    8,715,885   $ 36.34     8,122,335  
    

The activity for the six months ended June 30, 2012, with respect to our unvested restricted stock, was as follows:
 

      Weighted Average 
   Number of   Grant Date Fair  
   Shares   Value  
Balance at December 31, 2011    1,192,982   
Granted    5,000   
Vested    (500,168)  
Forfeited    (1,797)  

  

Balance at June 30, 2012    696,017   $ 34.03  
  

The activity for the six months ended June 30, 2012, with respect to our RSU and PSA awards, was as follows:
 

   Number of   Weighted Average    Number of  
   Shares   Grant-Date Fair Value   Shares Vested 
Balance at December 31, 2011    1,684,713     
Granted    1,606,377     
Distributed    (666,533)    
Forfeited/Expired    (42,041)    

    

Balance at June 30, 2012    2,582,516   $ 31.98     48,735  
    

During the six months ended June 30, 2012, we granted 1,567,348 RSUs, which, generally, will vest over three years. In addition, 39,029 PSAs were earned based on 2011
performance.
 
12.  Merger, Acquisition and Other Integration Expenses
In connection with the Merger, we have incurred significant transaction, integration, and transitional costs. These costs include investment banker advisory fees; legal, tax,
accounting and valuation fees; termination and severance costs (both cash and stock based compensation awards) for terminated and transitional employees; non-capitalized
system conversion costs; and other integration costs. These costs are expensed as incurred, which in some cases will be through the end of 2012. Certain of these costs were
obligations of AMB and expensed prior to the closing of the Merger by AMB. At the time of the Merger, we terminated our existing credit facilities and wrote-off the remaining
unamortized deferred loan costs associated with such facilities, which is included as a merger expense. In addition, we have included costs associated with the acquisition of a
controlling interest in PEPR in 2011 and the pending liquidation of PEPR in 2012. The following is a breakdown of the Merger and Acquisition costs incurred (in thousands):
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   Three Months Ended    Six Months Ended  
   June 30,    June 30,  
   2012    2011    2012    2011  
Termination, severance and transitional employee costs   $11,852    $ 30,530    $19,537    $ 34,337  
Professional fees    6,738     39,308     8,954     41,489  
Office closure, travel and other costs    2,596     22,345     3,423     22,345  
Write-off of deferred loan costs    —       10,869     —       10,869  

        

Total   $21,186    $103,052    $31,914    $109,040  
        

 
13.  Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share /Unit
We determine basic earnings per share/unit based on the weighted average number of shares of common stock/units outstanding during the period. We compute diluted earnings
per share/unit based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding combined with the incremental weighted average effect from all outstanding potentially dilutive
instruments.

The following table sets forth the computation of our basic and diluted earnings per share/unit (in thousands, except per share/unit amounts):
 

   Three Months Ended   Six Months Ended  
   June 30,   June 30,  
REIT   2012(1)   2011 (1)   2012    2011(1)  
Net earnings (loss) available for common stockholders   $ (8,120)  $(151,471)  $194,293    $(198,087) 
Noncontrolling interest attributable to exchangeable limited partnership units    —      —      1,069     —    

    

Adjusted net earnings (loss) available for common stockholders   $ (8,120)  $(151,471)  $195,362    $(198,087) 
    

Weighted average common shares outstanding - Basic (2)    459,878    307,756    459,549     281,384  
Incremental weighted average effect on exchange of limited partnership units    —      —      3,299     —    
Incremental weighted average effect of share awards    —      —      1,848     —    

    

Weighted average common shares outstanding - Diluted (3)    459,878    307,756    464,696     281,384  
    

Net earnings (loss) per share available for common stockholders - Basic and Diluted   $ (0.02)  $ (0.49)  $ 0.42    $ (0.70) 
    

Operating Partnership               
Net earnings (loss) available for common unitholders   $ (8,173)  $(151,471)  $195,181    $(198,087) 
Noncontrolling interest attributable to exchangeable limited partnership units    —      —      121     —    

    

Adjusted net earnings (loss) available for common unitholders   $ (8,173)  $(151,471)  $195,302    $(198,087) 
    

Weighted average common partnership units outstanding - Basic (2)    461,842    308,389    461,559     281,702  
Incremental weighted average effect on exchange of limited partnership units    —      —      1,289     —    
Incremental weighted average effect of share awards    —      —      1,848     —    

    

Weighted average common partnership units outstanding - Diluted (3)    461,842    308,389    464,696     281,702  
    

Net earnings (loss) per unit available for common unitholders - Basic and Diluted   $ (0.02)  $ (0.49)  $ 0.42    $ (0.70) 
    

 
(1) In periods with a net loss, the inclusion of any incremental shares/units is anti-dilutive and, therefore, both basic and diluted shares/units are the same.
(2) The increase in shares/units from 2011 to 2012 is due to the Merger (see Note 2 for more details) and an equity offering in June 2011.
(3) Total weighted average potentially dilutive share awards outstanding (in thousands) were 9,835 and 4,966 for the three months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011,

respectively, and 9,977 and 3,715 for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
 
14.  Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measurements
Derivative Financial Instruments
In the normal course of business, our operations are exposed to global market risks, including the effect of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. To
manage these risks, we may enter into various derivative contracts. We may use foreign currency contracts, including forwards and options, to manage foreign currency
exposure. We may use interest rate swaps or caps to manage the effect of interest rate fluctuations. We do not use derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. The
majority of our derivative financial instruments are customized derivative transactions and are not exchange-traded. Management reviews our hedging program, derivative
positions, and overall risk management strategy on a regular basis. We only enter into transactions that we believe will be effective at offsetting the underlying risk.
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Our use of derivatives does involve the risk that counterparties may default on a derivative contract. We establish exposure limits for each counterparty to minimize this risk and
provide counterparty diversification. Substantially all of our derivative exposures are with counterparties that have long-term credit ratings of single-A or better. We enter into
master agreements with counterparties that generally allow for netting of certain exposures; therefore, the actual loss we would recognize if all counterparties failed to perform
as contracted would be significantly lower. To mitigate pre-settlement risk, minimum credit standards become more stringent as the duration of the derivative financial
instrument increases. To minimize the concentration of credit risk, we enter into derivative transactions with a portfolio of financial institutions. Based on these factors, we
consider the risk of counterparty default to be minimal.

All derivatives are recognized at fair value in our Consolidated Balance Sheets within the line items Other Assets or Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses, as applicable. We
do not net our derivative position by counterparty for purposes of balance sheet presentation and disclosure. The accounting for gains and losses that result from changes in the
fair values of derivative instruments depends on whether the derivatives are designated as, and qualify as, hedging instruments. Derivatives can be designated as fair value
hedges, cash flow hedges or hedges of net investments in foreign operations.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recorded in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss in our Consolidated
Balance Sheets. We reclassify changes in the fair value of derivatives into the applicable line item in our Consolidated Statements of Operations in which the hedged items are
recorded in the same period that the underlying hedged items affect earnings. Due to the high degree of effectiveness between the hedging instruments and the underlying
exposures hedged, fluctuations in the value of the derivative instruments will generally be offset by changes in the fair values or cash flows of the underlying exposures being
hedged. The changes in fair values of derivatives that were not designated and/or did not qualify as hedging instruments are immediately recognized in earnings.

For derivatives that will be accounted for as hedging instruments in accordance with the accounting standards, we formally designate and document, at inception, the financial
instrument as a hedge of a specific underlying exposure, the risk management objective and the strategy for undertaking the hedge transaction. In addition, we formally assess
both at inception and at least quarterly thereafter, whether the derivatives used in hedging transactions are effective at offsetting changes in either the fair values or cash flows of
the related underlying exposures. Any ineffective portion of a derivative financial instrument’s change in fair value is immediately recognized in earnings. Derivatives not
designated as hedges are not speculative and are used to manage our exposure to foreign currency fluctuations but do not meet the strict hedge accounting requirements.

Our interest rate risk management strategy is to limit the impact of future interest rate changes on earnings and cash flows as well as to stabilize interest expense and manage our
exposure to interest rate movements. To achieve this objective, we have entered into interest rate swap and cap agreements, which allow us to borrow on a fixed rate basis for
longer-term debt issuances. The maximum length of time that we hedge our exposure to future cash flows is typically less than 10 years. We use cash flow hedges to minimize
the variability in cash flows of assets or liabilities or forecasted transactions caused by fluctuations in interest rates. We also have entered into interest rate swap agreements
which allow us to receive variable-rate amounts from a counterparty in exchange for us making fixed-rate payments over the life of our agreements without the exchange of the
underlying notional amount. We had 41 interest rate swap contracts, including 33 contracts denominated in euro, five contracts denominated in Japanese yen, two contracts
denominated in British pound sterling and one contract denominated in U.S. dollar, outstanding at June 30, 2012.

We had $35.9 million and $28.5 million accrued in Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses in our Consolidated Balance Sheets relating to these unsettled derivative contracts
at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively.

We typically designate our interest rate swap and interest rate cap agreements as cash flow hedges as these derivative instruments may be used to manage the interest rate risk
on potential future debt issuances or to fix the interest rate on a variable rate debt issuance. The effective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative is reported as a component
of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss in our Consolidated Balance Sheets, and reclassified to Interest Expense in the Consolidated Statements of Operations over the
corresponding period of the hedged item. Losses on the derivative representing hedge ineffectiveness are recognized in Interest Expense at the time the ineffectiveness occurred.

The amounts reclassified from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income to interest expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2012 were $2.5 million and $5.1
million, respectively. The amounts reclassified to interest expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2011 were not considered material. For the next twelve months
from June 30, 2012, we estimate that an additional $13.0 million will be reclassified to interest expense. We recorded a gain of $2.3 million and $1.4 million for ineffectiveness
during the three and six months ended June 30, 2012, respectively. We did not have ineffectiveness during the three and six months ended June 30, 2011. Amounts included in
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss in our Consolidated Balance Sheet at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 were losses of $47.1 million and $51.7 million,
respectively.
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The following table summarizes the activity in our derivative instruments (in millions) for the six months ended June 30:
 

   2012    2011  

   
Interest Rate

Swaps   
Interest Rate

Caps    
Interest Rate

Swaps   
Interest Rate

Caps  
Notional amounts at January 1   $ 1,496.5   $ —      $ 268.1   $ —    
New contracts    444.2    —       —      —    
Acquired contracts    71.0    —       1,337.3    25.7  
Matured or expired contracts    (456.0)   —       (9.6)   —    

    

Notional amounts at June 30   $ 1,555.7   $ —      $ 1,595.8   $ 25.7  
    

Fair Value Measurements
We have estimated the fair value of our financial instruments using available market information and valuation methodologies we believe to be appropriate for these purposes.
Considerable judgment and a high degree of subjectivity are involved in developing these estimates and, accordingly, they are not necessarily indicative of amounts that we
would realize upon disposition.

Fair Value Measurements on a Recurring and Non-recurring Basis
At June 30, 2012, other than the derivatives discussed above and in Note 7, we do not have any significant financial assets or financial liabilities that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis in our consolidated financial statements.

Non-financial assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis in our consolidated financial statements consist of real estate assets and investments in and advances to
unconsolidated entities that were subject to impairment charges. We do not have any significant non-financial assets measured at fair value at June 30, 2012.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
At June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the carrying amounts of certain of our financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts and notes
receivable and accounts payable and accrued expenses were representative of their fair values due to the short-term nature of these instruments and the recent acquisition of
these items.

At June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the fair value of our senior notes and exchangeable senior notes, has been estimated based upon quoted market prices for the same
(Level 1) or similar (Level 2) issues when current quoted market prices are available, the fair value of our Credit Facilities has been estimated by discounting the future cash
flows using rates and borrowing spreads currently available to us (Level 3), and the fair value of our secured mortgage debt and assessment bonds that do not have current
quoted market prices available has been estimated by discounting the future cash flows using rates currently available to us for debt with similar terms and maturities (Level 3).
The fair value of our derivative financial instruments is determined through widely accepted valuation techniques, such as a discounted cash flow analysis on the expected cash
flows and a Black Scholes option pricing model (Level 2). The differences in the fair value of our debt from the carrying value in the table below are the result of differences in
interest rates and/or borrowing spreads that were available to us at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, as compared with those in effect when the debt was issued or
acquired. The senior notes and many of the issues of secured mortgage debt contain pre-payment penalties or yield maintenance provisions that could make the cost of
refinancing the debt at lower rates exceed the benefit that would be derived from doing so.

The following table reflects the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of our debt (in thousands):
 

   June 30, 2012    December 31, 2011  
   Carrying Value   Fair Value    Carrying Value   Fair Value  
Debt:         
Credit Facilities   $ 1,138,414    $ 1,143,735    $ 936,796    $ 940,334  
Senior notes    4,684,152     5,201,866     4,772,607     5,038,678  
Exchangeable senior notes    877,776     994,694     1,315,448     1,431,805  
Secured mortgage debt    3,115,437     3,248,920     1,699,363     1,832,931  
Secured mortgage debt of consolidated entities    1,366,837     1,361,701     1,495,047     1,485,808  
Other debt of consolidated entities    602,938     612,456     775,763     751,075  
Other debt    648,031     650,729     387,384     389,804  

        

Total debt   $12,433,585    $13,214,101    $11,382,408    $11,870,435  
        

 
15.  Business Segments
Our current business strategy includes two operating segments: Real Estate Operations and Private Capital. We generate revenues, earnings, net operating income (calculated as
rental income less rental expenses) and cash flows through our segments, as follows:
 

 

•  Real Estate Operations — This represents the direct long-term ownership of industrial operating properties and is the primary source of our core revenue and
earnings. We collect rent from our customers under operating leases, including reimbursements for the vast majority of our operating costs. Each operating
property is considered to be an individual operating segment having similar economic characteristics that are combined within the reportable segment based upon
geographic location. Our real estate operations segment also includes development and re-development activities. We develop and re-develop industrial properties
primarily in global and regional markets to meet our customers’ needs. We provide additional value creation by utilizing: (i) the land that we currently own in
global and regional markets; (ii) the development expertise of our local personnel; (iii) our global customer relationships; and (iv) the demand for high quality
distribution facilities in key markets. Land held for development, properties currently under development and land we own and lease to customers under ground
leases are also included in this segment.
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We own real estate in the Americas (Canada, Mexico and the United States), Europe (Austria, Belgium, the Czech Republic, France, Germany, Hungary, Italy, the
Netherlands, Poland, Romania, Slovakia, Spain, Sweden and the United Kingdom) and Asia (China, Japan and Singapore)

 

 

•  Private Capital — This represents the long-term management of unconsolidated co-investment ventures and other joint ventures. We have a direct and long-
standing relationship with a significant number of institutional investors. We tailor industrial portfolios to investors’ specific needs and deploy capital in both
close-ended and open-ended fund structures and joint ventures, while providing complete portfolio management and financial reporting services. We recognize
fees and incentives earned for services performed on behalf of the unconsolidated entities and certain third parties.
We report the costs associated with our private capital segment for all periods presented in the line item Private Capital Expenses in our Consolidated Statements of
Operations. These costs include the direct expenses associated with the asset management of the property funds provided by individuals who are assigned to our
private capital segment. In addition, in order to achieve efficiencies and economies of scale, all of our property management functions are provided by a team of
professionals who are assigned to our real estate operations segment. These individuals perform the property-level management of the properties we own and the
properties we manage that are owned by the unconsolidated entities. We allocate the costs of our property management function to the properties we consolidate
(reported in Rental Expenses) and the properties owned by the unconsolidated entities (included in Private Capital Expenses), by using the square feet owned by the
respective portfolios. We are further reimbursed by the co-investments ventures for certain expenses associated with managing these property funds.
Each entity we manage is considered to be an individual operating segment having similar economic characteristics that are combined within the reportable
segment based upon geographic location. Our operations in the private capital segment are in the Americas (Brazil, Canada, Mexico and the United States), Europe
(Belgium, the Czech Republic, France, Germany, Hungary, Italy, the Netherlands, Poland, Slovakia, Spain, Sweden and the United Kingdom) and Asia (China and
Japan).

We present the operations and net gains associated with properties sold to third parties or classified as held for sale as discontinued operations, which results in the restatement
of prior year operating results to exclude the items presented as discontinued operations.

Reconciliations are presented below for: (i) each reportable business segment’s revenue from external customers to our Total Revenues; (ii) each reportable business segment’s
net operating income from external customers to our Earnings (Loss) before Income Taxes; and (iii) each reportable business segment’s assets to our Total Assets. Our chief
operating decision makers rely primarily on net operating income and similar measures to make decisions about allocating resources and assessing segment performance. The
applicable components of our Total Revenues, Earnings (Loss) before Income Taxes and Total Assets are allocated to each reportable business segment’s revenues, net operating
income and assets. Items that are not directly assignable to a segment, such as certain corporate income and expenses, are reflected as reconciling items. The following
reconciliations are presented in thousands:
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   Three Months Ended   Six Months Ended  
   June 30,   June 30,  
   2012   2011   2012   2011  
Revenues:      

Real estate operations (1):      
Americas   $ 317,840   $ 191,948   $ 610,350   $ 340,936  
Europe    116,325    62,440    235,803    88,985  
Asia    55,590    33,548    109,209    56,974  

  

Total Real Estate Operations segment    489,755    287,936    955,362    486,895  
  

Private capital (2):      
Americas    16,470    16,548    34,824    32,697  
Europe    9,326    13,977    18,463    27,302  
Asia    5,197    2,451    10,063    2,812  

  

Total Private Capital segment    30,993    32,976    63,350    62,811  
  

Total revenues   $ 520,748   $ 320,912   $1,018,712   $ 549,706  
  

Net operating income:      
Real estate operations (3):      

Americas   $ 219,032   $ 135,720   $ 424,629   $ 237,485  
Europe    88,181    43,537    177,938    58,860  
Asia    43,284    25,893    84,759    42,882  

  

Total Real Estate Operations segment    350,497    205,150    687,326    339,227  
  

Private capital (2)(4):      
Americas    7,798    9,323    15,745    18,714  
Europe    5,418    10,038    10,802    19,843  
Asia    2,702    2,019    4,847    2,106  

  

Total Private Capital segment    15,918    21,380    31,394    40,663  
  

Total segment net operating income    366,415    226,530    718,720    379,890  
Reconciling items:      

General and administrative expenses    (51,415)   (51,840)   (111,574)   (91,023) 
Merger, acquisition and other integration expenses    (21,186)   (103,052)   (31,914)   (109,040) 
Impairment of real estate properties    —      —      (3,185)   —    
Depreciation and amortization    (186,770)   (118,606)   (374,640)   (198,183) 
Earnings from unconsolidated entities, net    3,889    11,399    17,884    25,040  
Interest expense    (127,946)   (112,916)   (261,328)   (203,443) 
Impairment of other assets    —      (103,823)   (16,135)   (103,823) 
Interest and other income, net    5,912    5,277    11,013    2,698  
Gains on acquisitions and dispositions of investments in real estate, net (5)    520    102,529    268,291    106,254  
Foreign currency and derivative gains (losses), net    12,753    (10,255)   (14,022)   (8,881) 
Gain (loss) on early extinguishment of debt, net    (500)   —      4,919    —    

  

Total reconciling items    (364,743)   (381,287)   (510,691)   (580,401) 
  

Earnings (loss) before income taxes   $ 1,672   $(154,757)  $ 208,029   $(200,511) 
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   June 30,    December 31,  
   2012    2011  
Assets:     
Real estate operations:     

Americas   $15,274,332    $ 13,305,147  
Europe    6,400,136     6,823,814  
Asia    3,615,947     3,502,033  

    

Total Real Estate Operations segment    25,290,415     23,630,994  
    

Private capital (6):     
Americas    25,137     43,394  
Europe    60,576     61,946  
Asia    7,867     9,368  

    

Total Private Capital segment    93,580     114,708  
    

Total segment assets    25,383,995     23,745,702  
    

Reconciling items:     
Investments in and advances to unconsolidated entities    2,220,172     2,857,755  
Notes receivable backed by real estate    245,654     322,834  
Assets held for sale    50,672     444,850  
Cash and cash equivalents    293,631     176,072  
Other assets    221,439     176,699  

    

Total reconciling items    3,031,568     3,978,210  
    

Total assets   $28,415,563    $ 27,723,912  
    

 
(1) Includes rental income of our industrial properties and land subject to ground leases, as well as development management and other income.
(2) Includes revenues earned from managing our unconsolidated entities and certain third parties.
(3) Includes rental income less rental expenses of our industrial properties and land subject to ground leases, as well as development management and other income less

related expenses.
(4) Amounts are reduced by the direct costs we incur to manage the unconsolidated entities and certain third parties that are presented as Private Capital Expenses in our

Consolidated Statements of Operations.
(5) Included in 2012 is a $273.0 million gain on acquisition of Prologis California in February 2012. See Note 2 for further information on this transaction.
(6) Represents management contracts recorded in connection with business combinations and goodwill associated with the Private Capital segment.
 
16.  Supplemental Cash Flow Information
Non-cash investing and financing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:
 

 •  In April 2011, we assumed $61.7 million of debt upon the acquisition of the remaining interest in a joint venture that owned one property in Japan.
 

 •  See Note 2 for information related to the Merger in 2011 and the Q1 Venture Acquisitions in 2012.
 

 •  During the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, we capitalized portions of the total cost of our stock-based compensation awards of $4.2 million and $3.1
million, respectively, to the investment basis of our real estate or other assets.

 

 •  During the first quarter of 2012, we received $2.5 million of ownership interests in certain unconsolidated entities as a portion of our proceeds from the
contribution of properties to these entities.

The amount of interest paid in cash, net of amounts capitalized, for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 was $267.8 million and $170.5 million, respectively.

During the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, cash paid for income taxes, net of refunds, was $18.4 million and $9.4 million, respectively.
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17.  Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation
In the normal course of business, from time to time, we and our unconsolidated entities are parties to a variety of legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business.
We believe that, with respect to any such matters that we are currently a party to, the ultimate disposition of any such matter will not result in a material adverse effect on our
business, financial position or results of operations.
In December 2011, arbitration hearings began in connection with a dispute related to a real estate development project known as Pacific Commons. The plaintiff, Cisco
Technology, Inc. (“Cisco”), is seeking rescission of a 2007 Restructuring and Settlement Agreement (the “Contract”) and other agreements, and declaratory relief, and damages
for breach of the Contract. Specifically, Cisco seeks (1) declaratory relief that Prologis owes certain Community Facilities District taxes that have been assessed against its land,
following Cisco’s purchase of the land from Prologis through the exercise of option agreements; (2) declaratory relief that Prologis’ partial transfers of rights and obligations
under the Contract to third parties are void; and (3) damages for alleged breaches of the Contract relating to the plans to build a baseball stadium at Pacific Commons. Although
the total damages alleged by Cisco are approximately $200 million, we believe these claims are without merit and are defending these matters vigorously. Based on the facts and
circumstances surrounding this dispute, we believe the low end of our range of loss is zero and therefore, in accordance with GAAP, we have not recorded any liability with
respect to this matter as of June 30, 2012.
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The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Prologis, Inc.:
We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Prologis, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of June 30, 2012, the related consolidated statements of
operations and consolidated statements of comprehensive income (loss) for the three-month and six-month periods ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, the related consolidated
statement of equity for the six-month period ended June 30, 2012, and the related consolidated statements of cash flows for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2012 and
2011. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.

We conducted our reviews in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). A review of interim financial information
consists principally of applying analytical procedures and making inquiries of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters. It is substantially less in scope than an
audit conducted in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the objective of which is the expression of an opinion
regarding the financial statements taken as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the consolidated financial statements referred to above for them to be in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We have previously audited, in accordance with standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheet of Prologis, Inc.
and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2011, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), equity, and cash flows for the year then ended
(not presented herein); and in our report dated February 28, 2012, we expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements. In our opinion, the
information set forth in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2011, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated balance
sheet from which it has been derived.

KPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
August 6, 2012
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Partners
Prologis, L.P.:
We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Prologis, L.P. and subsidiaries (the “Operating Partnership”) as of June 30, 2012, the related consolidated
statements of operations and consolidated statements of comprehensive income (loss) for the three-month and six-month periods ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, the related
consolidated statement of capital for the six-month period ended June 30, 2012, and the related consolidated statements of cash flows for the six-month periods ended June 30,
2012 and 2011. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Operating Partnership’s management.

We conducted our reviews in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). A review of interim financial information
consists principally of applying analytical procedures and making inquiries of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters. It is substantially less in scope than an
audit conducted in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the objective of which is the expression of an opinion
regarding the financial statements taken as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the consolidated financial statements referred to above for them to be in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We have previously audited, in accordance with standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheet of Prologis, L.P.
and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2011, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), capital, and cash flows for the year then ended
(not presented herein); and in our report dated February 28, 2012, we expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements. In our opinion, the
information set forth in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2011, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated balance
sheet from which it has been derived.

KPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
August 6, 2012
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 ITEM 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial Statements and the related notes included in Item 1 of this report and our 2011 Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

Certain statements contained in this discussion or elsewhere in this report may be deemed “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995 and Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Words and phrases such as “expects”, “anticipates”,
“intends”, “plans”, “believes”, “seeks”, “estimates”, “designed to achieve”, variations of such words and similar expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking
statements, which generally are not historical in nature. All statements that address operating performance, events or developments that we expect or anticipate will occur in the
future – including statements relating to rent and occupancy growth, development activity and sales or contribution volume or profitability on such sales and contributions,
economic and market conditions in the geographic areas where we operate and the availability of capital in existing or new co-investment ventures – are forward-looking
statements. These statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions that are difficult to predict. Although we believe
the expectations reflected in any forward-looking statements are based on reasonable assumptions, we can give no assurance that our expectations will be attained and therefore,
actual outcomes and results may differ materially from what is expressed or forecasted in such forward-looking statements. Many of the factors that may affect outcomes and
results are beyond our ability to control. For further discussion of these factors see Part II, “Item 1A. Risk Factors” in our 2011 Annual Report on Form 10-K. References to
“we”, “us” and “our” refer to ProLogis and its consolidated subsidiaries prior to the Merger (defined below) and to Prologis, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries following the
Merger.

Management’s Overview
We are the leading global owner, operator and developer of industrial real estate, focused on global and regional markets across the Americas, Europe and Asia. As of June 30,
2012, we owned, or had investments in, on a consolidated basis or through unconsolidated entities, properties and development projects totaling 569 million square feet (52.9
million square meters) in 21 countries. These properties are leased to approximately 4,500 customers, including third-party logistics providers, manufacturers, retailers,
transportation companies, and other enterprises.

Of the 569 million square feet of our owned and managed portfolio as of June 30, 2012:
 

 •  537 million square feet were in our operating portfolio with a gross book value of $40.9 billion that were 92.4% occupied;
 

 •  13 million square feet were in our development portfolio with a total expected investment of $1.3 billion and were 44.4% leased;
 

 •  19 million square feet consisted of properties we manage on behalf of third parties, properties in which we have an ownership interest but do not manage and other
properties we own; and

 

 •  the largest customer and 25 largest customers accounted for 2.6% and 18.8%, respectively, of the annualized base rent.

Prologis, Inc. (the “REIT”) is a self-administered and self-managed real estate investment trust, and is the sole general partner of Prologis, L.P. (the “Operating Partnership”).
We operate the REIT and the Operating Partnership as one enterprise, and, therefore, our discussion and analysis refers to the REIT and its consolidated subsidiaries, including
the Operating Partnership, collectively.

Our business strategy includes two operating segments: Real Estate Operations and Private Capital. We generate revenues, earnings, net operating income (calculated as rental
income less rental expenses), and funds from operations (as defined below), and cash flows through our segments primarily through three lines of business, as follows:

Real Estate Operations Segment
Rental Operations—This represents the primary source of our core revenue, earnings and funds from operations (or FFO as defined below). We collect rent from our

customers under operating leases, including reimbursements for the vast majority of our operating costs. We seek to generate long-term internal growth in rents by maintaining a
high occupancy rate at our properties, by controlling expenses and through contractual rent increases on existing space and renewals on rollover space, thus capitalizing on the
economies of scale inherent in owning, operating and growing a large global portfolio. Our rental income is diversified due to both our global presence and our broad customer
base. We expect to increase overall rental income primarily through the leasing of space currently available in our properties. We believe that our property management and
leasing teams, regular maintenance programs, capital expenditure programs, energy management and sustainability programs create cost efficiencies, allow us to leverage our
global platform and provide flexible solutions for our customers as well as the Company.

Capital Deployment Activities—Our development and re-development activities support our rental operations and are, therefore, included with that line of business for
segment reporting. We develop and re-develop industrial properties primarily in global and regional markets to meet our customers’ needs. Within this line of business, we
provide additional value creation by utilizing: (i) the land that we currently own in global and regional markets; (ii) the development expertise of our local personnel; (iii) our
global customer relationships; and (iv) the demand for high quality distribution facilities in key markets. We seek to increase our rental income and the net asset value of the
Company through the leasing of newly developed space, as well as through the acquisition of properties. Depending on several factors, we may develop properties directly or in
co-investment ventures for long-term hold, for contribution into one of our co-investment ventures, or for sale to third parties. Properties that we choose to contribute or sell
may result in the recognition of gains or losses. Currently, in the U.S., Europe and Japan, we are developing directly while in emerging markets, such as Brazil, China and
Mexico, we are developing with our private capital partners in a variety of co-investment ventures.

Private Capital Segment -We co-invest in properties with private capital investors through a variety of co-investment ventures. We have a direct
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and long-standing relationship with a significant number of institutional investors. We tailor industrial portfolios to investors’ specific needs and deploy capital in both close-
ended and open-ended fund structures and joint ventures, while providing complete portfolio management and financial reporting services. We generally own 15-50% in the
ventures. We believe our co-investment in each of our ventures provides a strong alignment of interests with our co-investment partners’ interests. We generate revenues from
our unconsolidated co-investment ventures by providing asset management and property management services. We may also earn revenues through additional services provided
such as leasing, acquisition, construction, development, disposition, legal and tax services. Depending on the structure of the venture and the returns provided to our partners,
we may also earn revenues through incentive returns or promotes. We believe our co-investment program with private capital investors will continue to serve as a source of
capital for new investments and provide revenues for our stockholders, as well as mitigate risk associated with our foreign currency exposure. We expect to grow this business
with the formation of new ventures and by raising additional third-party capital in our existing ventures.

On June 3, 2011, we completed a merger in which ProLogis shareholders received 0.4464 of a share of AMB Property Corporation (“AMB”) common stock for each
outstanding common share of beneficial interest in ProLogis (the “Merger”). Following the Merger, AMB changed its name to Prologis, Inc. In the Merger, AMB was the legal
acquirer and ProLogis was the accounting acquirer. In May 2011, we also acquired a controlling interest in and began consolidating ProLogis European Properties (“PEPR
Acquisition”). As a result, our second quarter results for 2011 reflect approximately one month of impact of the Merger and the PEPR Acquisition. Therefore, period to period
comparisons may not provide as meaningful information as if those transactions were reflected in both periods. See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1
for more information relating to both the Merger and PEPR Acquisition.

Upon the closing of the Merger, we established key strategic priorities to guide our path over the next two years. These priorities are:
 

 •  to align our portfolio with our investment strategy while serving the needs of our customers;
 

 •  to strengthen our financial position and build one of the top balance sheets in the real estate investment trust industry;
 

 •  to streamline our private capital business and position it for substantial growth;
 

 •  to improve the utilization of our low yielding assets; and
 

 •  to build the most effective and efficient organization in the real estate investment trust industry and to become the employer of choice among top professionals
interested in real estate as a career.

Align our Portfolio with our Investment Strategy
We have categorized the portfolio into three main segments – global, regional and other markets. As of June 30, 2012, global markets represented approximately 83% of our
overall owned and managed platform (based on our share of net operating income of the properties) and regional markets represented 12% of our total owned and managed
platform. We intend to hold only the highest quality class-A product in our regional markets. We also own a small number of assets in other markets, which account for 5% of
our owned and managed platform and that we plan to exit from in an orderly fashion in the next few years. By segmenting our markets in this manner, we were able to construct
a strategy that includes culling the portfolio for buildings and potentially submarkets that are no longer a strategic fit for the company. We expect to use the proceeds from
dispositions to pay down debt and to recycle capital into new development projects or strategic acquisitions.

Strengthen our Financial Position
We intend to further strengthen our financial position by lowering our financial risk and currency exposure and building one of the strongest balance sheets in the real estate
investment trust industry. We expect to lower our financial risk by reducing leverage with proceeds from contributions and asset sales, increasing the size of our unencumbered
asset portfolio and maintaining staggered debt maturities, which will provide us with more financial flexibility and allow continued access to debt capital markets. This financial
flexibility will position us to capitalize on market opportunities across the entire business cycle as they become available. We will reduce our exposure to foreign currency
exchange fluctuations by borrowing in local currency where appropriate, and we might also enter into derivative contracts to hedge our foreign denominated equity and swap
U.S. dollar denominated debt into obligations denominated in foreign currencies. We expect to also lower our currency exposure by holding assets we own outside the U.S.
primarily in co-investment ventures in which we maintain an ownership interest and provide services generating private capital revenue. We will accomplish this through
contributions and sales to our existing and newly formed co-investment ventures. In addition, we expect that new development projects, particularly in emerging markets such
as Brazil, China and Mexico, will be done in conjunction with our private capital partners.

Streamline Private Capital Business
We are working with our private capital investors to evaluate certain of our co-investment ventures. Some of our legacy co-investment ventures have fee structures that do not
adequately compensate us for the services we provide. Also, some ventures have governance or decision making processes in place that we would like to change. Therefore, we
may terminate or restructure certain of these co-investment ventures. In other cases, we may combine some co-investment ventures to gain operational efficiencies. In every
case, however, we will work very closely with our partners and venture investors who will be active participants in these decisions. We plan to grow our private capital business
with the deployment of the private capital commitments we have already raised, formation of new co-investment ventures and raising incremental capital for our existing co-
investment ventures.
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Improve the Utilization of Our Low Yielding Assets
We plan to increase the value of our low yielding assets by stabilizing our operating portfolio to 95% leased, completing the build-out and lease-up of our development projects
as well as monetizing our land through development or sale to third parties.

Build the most effective and efficient organization in the real estate investment trust industry and become the employer of choice among top professionals interested in real
estate as a career
We have identified more than $115 million of Merger cost synergies on an annualized basis, as compared to the combined expenses of AMB and ProLogis on a pre-Merger
basis. These synergies include gross general and administrative savings, reduced global line of credit facility fees and lower amortization of non real estate assets. We believe
we have realized substantially all of these synergies already and expect to realize the full amount by the end of 2012 and we continue to look for additional savings opportunities.
In addition, we are in the process of implementing a new enterprise wide system that will include a property management/billing system (implemented in April 2012), a human
resources system (implemented in July 2012), a general ledger and accounting system and a data warehouse. In connection with this implementation, we are striving to utilize
the most effective global business processes with the enhanced system functionality. As of January 1, 2012, we implemented two new compensation plans that we believe will
better align employees’ compensation to our performance. We believe these efforts and others will help us with the attainment of this objective.

Summary of 2012
During the six months ended June 30, 2012, we completed the following activities in support of our strategic priorities:
 

 
•  We rationalized two of our unconsolidated co-investment ventures by purchasing our partner’s interest in Prologis North America Fund II (“ NAIF II”) and

dissolving Prologis California and dividing the portfolio equally with our partner (collectively “Q1 Venture Acquisitions”). These two transactions increased our
real estate by $2.1 billion and debt by $1.4 billion. See Note 2 to our Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1 for more details.

 

 
•  We increased our ownership in PEPR to 99.5%. On June 26, 2012, PEPR passed a resolution to wind-up the entity. Prologis, Inc has opted for in-kind distribution

of assets and will assume responsibility for all liabilities of PEPR. We may continue to own these properties, contribute to a new or existing co-investment venture
or sell to a third party.

 

 •  In 2012, we issued TMK bonds or increased existing TMK bonds for a combined amount of ¥48.0 billion ($603.5 million).
 

 
•  We generated aggregate proceeds of $935.0 million from the disposition of land and 95 properties to third parties and the contribution of five properties to two co-

investment ventures and used the proceeds to reduce our outstanding debt, repurchase 5.8% of PEPR shares, acquire real estate properties and fund our
development.

 

 •  We began 11 consolidated development projects aggregating 5.0 million square feet with a total expected investment of $405.7 million, including six projects (or
79% of the total expected investment) that were 100% leased prior to development.

 

 •  We entered into a multi-currency senior term loan agreement and used the proceeds to pay off two outstanding term loans with the remainder used to pay down our
credit facilities.

As of June 30, 2012, our total owned and managed portfolio, including both consolidated and unconsolidated properties, was 92.4% occupied and 92.7% leased as compared to
92.2% occupied and 92.5% leased at December 31, 2011 and 90.7% occupied and 91.3% leased at June 30, 2011.

Operational Outlook
Economic growth has slowed, but consumption and trade remain healthy. Additionally, inventories continue to rise, and utilization rates have been on an overall upward
trajectory since late 2010, with significant acceleration over the last six months. In the U.S., net absorption totaled more than 120 million square feet in 2011, representing a
remarkable improvement over the past few years, and we continue to estimate net absorption of 150 million square feet in 2012.

U.S. industrial net absorption measured 26.4 million square feet in the second quarter of 2012, down slightly from 27.3 million square feet in the first quarter of 2012. Net
absorption has been positive for the last eight consecutive quarters, reducing the availability rate by 140 basis points during that time. At 13.2%, availability is at its lowest level
since the second quarter of 2009. Net effective rent has begun to make modest improvements, and as a result, some speculative development is beginning in selected locations
with increasing demand, such as Dallas, Houston, New Jersey, Seattle, South Florida and Southern California.

Within Europe and Japan, we believe significant supply chain reconfiguration, obsolescence and growing tenant preference to rent rather than own will fuel additional demand
for industrial space. Moreover, the undersupply of class-A distribution space in Japan has and will continue to create demand for more modern, earthquake-resistant product,
especially as Japan rebuilds from the March 2011 earthquake and tsunami, which temporarily interrupted its supply chain. Demand for logistics real estate in emerging markets
where we have investments primarily through our co-investment ventures, such as Brazil, China, and Mexico, remains strong due to growing economies.

In our total owned and managed operating portfolio, which includes properties managed by us and owned by our unconsolidated co-investment ventures that are accounted for
under the equity method, we leased 65.9 million square feet of space during the six months ended June 30, 2012. Including the properties that were part of the Merger, we
leased 67.8 million square feet of space during the six months ended June 30, 2011. The effective rental rates on leases signed during the second quarter of 2012 in our same
store portfolio (as defined below) decreased by 3.9% when compared with the rental rates on the previous leases on that same space. The total owned and managed portfolio was
92.4% occupied at June 30, 2012, up from 92.2% at December 31, 2011. During the six months ended June 30, 2012, we retained 80.3% of our customers as compared with
71.5% during the first six months of 2011.
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Due to the lack of supply of class-A facilities, coupled with the decreasing vacancy rates, we expect development volume to increase in our markets. Our development business
consists of speculative development, build-to-suit development, value added conversions and redevelopment. We expect to develop directly and within the co-investment
structures depending on location, market conditions, submarkets or building sites, and availability of capital. In response to this emerging demand, we are actively pursuing
various development opportunities, and we have commenced development on an owned and managed basis of 12 properties during the first six months of 2012.

Results of Operations
Six Months Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011
Summary
The following table illustrates the net operating income for each of our segments, along with the reconciling items to Earnings (Loss) from Continuing Operations on our
Consolidated Statements of Operations in Item 1 for the six months ended June 30 (in thousands):
 

   2012   2011  
Net operating income –Real Estate Operations segment   $ 687,326   $ 339,227  
Net operating income – Private Capital segment    31,394    40,663  
Other:    

General and administrative expenses    (111,574)   (91,023) 
Merger, acquisition and other integration expenses    (31,914)   (109,040) 
Impairment of real estate properties and other assets    (19,320)   (103,823) 
Depreciation and amortization    (374,640)   (198,183) 
Earnings from unconsolidated entities, net    17,884    25,040  
Interest expense    (261,328)   (203,443) 
Interest and other income, net    11,013    2,698  
Gains on acquisitions and dispositions of investments in real estate, net    268,291    106,254  
Foreign currency and derivative losses, net    (14,022)   (8,881) 
Gain on early extinguishment of debt, net    4,919    —    
Income tax expense    (20,199)   (12,798) 

  

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations   $ 187,830   $(213,309) 
  

See Note 15 to our Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1 for additional information regarding our segments and a reconciliation of net operating income to Earnings
(Loss) Before Income Taxes.

Real Estate Operations Segment
The net operating income of the Real Estate Operations segment consisted of rental income and rental expenses from industrial properties that we own and consolidate and is
impacted by our capital deployment activities. The size and percentage of occupancy of our consolidated operating portfolio fluctuates due to the timing of acquisitions,
development activity and contributions. Such fluctuations affect the net operating income we recognize in this segment in a particular period. Also included in this segment is
revenue from land we own and lease to customers under ground leases and development management and other income, offset by acquisition costs and land holding costs. The
net operating income from the Real Estate Operations segment for the six months ended June 30, excluding amounts presented as Discontinued Operations in our Consolidated
Financial Statements in Item 1, was as follows (in thousands):
 

   2012    2011  
Rental and other income   $955,362    $486,895  
Rental and other expenses    268,036     147,668  

    

Total net operating income - Real Estate Operations segment   $687,326    $339,227  
    

The increase in rental income and rental expense in 2012 from 2011 was due primarily to the impact of the Merger and the PEPR Acquisition in the second quarter of 2011, the
Q1 Venture Acquisitions in 2012 and increased occupancy in our consolidated operating properties (from 88.7% at June 30, 2011 to 91.9% at June 30, 2012), including the
completion and stabilization of new development properties. The results for 2012 included rental income and expenses from properties acquired through the Merger, PEPR
Acquisition and Q1 Venture Acquisitions of $514.5 million and $132.1 million, respectively, while 2011 included approximately one month of rental income and expense of the
acquired properties of $77.8 million and $20.8 million, respectively.

In our consolidated portfolio, we leased 38.8 million square feet for the six months ended June 30, 2012 compared to 23.1 million square feet for the six months ended June 30,
2011. In our total owned and managed portfolio, we calculate the change in effective rental rates on leases signed during the quarter as compared to the previous rent on that
same space in our same store portfolio (as defined below). During the first and second quarters of 2012, the percentage decrease was 1.1% and 3.9%, respectively, compared to
a decrease of 8.9% and 6.1% during the first and second
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quarters of 2011, respectively. A decline in rental rates is due to: (i) leases turning that were put in place when market rents were at or near peak; and (ii) decreased market
rents. We have experienced negative rental rate growth for the past several years due to leases turning that were entered into at peak market rates. Under the terms of our lease
agreements, we are able to recover the majority of our rental expenses from customers. Rental expense recoveries, which are included in both rental income and expenses, were
75.1% and 72.1% of rental expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Our consolidated operating properties are as follows (square feet in thousands):
 

   Number of Properties   Square Feet   Occupied % 
June 30, 2012 (1)    1,927     327,991     91.9% 
December 31, 2011 (2)    1,797     291,051     91.4% 
June 30, 2011    1,898     302,315     88.7% 

      

 

(1) The increase in properties from December 31, 2011 to June 30, 2012 is principally related to the Q1 Venture Acquisitions, as discussed above.
(2) The decrease in properties from June 30, 2011 to December 31, 2011 is principally related to third party building dispositions and contributions to unconsolidated co-

investment ventures.

Private Capital Segment
The net operating income of the Private Capital segment consisted of fees and incentives earned for services performed for our unconsolidated co-investment ventures and
certain joint ventures and third parties, reduced by our direct costs of managing these entities and the properties they own.

The direct costs associated with our Private Capital segment totaled $32.0 million and $22.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively, and are
included in the line item Private Capital Expenses in our Consolidated Statements of Operations in Item I. These expenses include the direct expenses associated with the asset
management of the unconsolidated co-investment ventures provided by our employees who are assigned to our Private Capital segment. In addition, in order to achieve
efficiencies and economies of scale, all of our property management functions are provided by a team of professionals who are assigned to our Real Estate Operations segment.
These individuals perform the property-level management of the properties in our owned and managed portfolio including properties we consolidate and the properties we
manage that are owned by the unconsolidated entities. We allocate the costs of our property management function to the properties we consolidate (reported in Rental Expenses)
and the properties owned by the unconsolidated entities (included in Private Capital Expenses), by using the square feet owned by the respective portfolios. The increase in
Private Capital Expenses in 2012 is due to the increased private capital platform and infrastructure that was part of the Merger, offset partially with a decline in the portion of
our property management expenses that are allocated to this segment due to the consolidation of PEPR and the Q1 Venture Acquisitions.

The net operating income from the Private Capital segment, representing fees earned reduced by private capital expenses, for the six months ended June 30 was as follows (in
thousands):
 

   2012    2011  
Americas (1)   $15,745    $18,714  
Europe (2)    10,802     19,843  
Asia (3)    4,847     2,106  

    

Total net operating income - Private Capital segment   $31,394    $40,663  
    

 
(1) We had seven unconsolidated operating co-investment ventures as of January 1, 2011. In connection with the Merger, we added three co-investment ventures. In 2012, we

dissolved one co-investment venture and acquired 50% of the related portfolio and purchased our partner’s interest in another, leaving eight unconsolidated operating co-
investment ventures remaining at June 30, 2012.

(2) Represents the fees earned by us from three and four unconsolidated co-investment ventures for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The reduction
in fees is due to the consolidation of PEPR in May 2011, which is slightly offset by the two ventures added through the Merger.

(3) Represents the fees earned by us from our investments in two and three unconsolidated co-investment ventures for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. We sold our investment in a Korea co-investment venture during the third quarter 2011. With the Merger, we acquired an investment in an unconsolidated co-
investment venture in each of Japan and China.

See Note 4 to our Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1 for additional information on our unconsolidated entities.

Other Components of Income
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General and Administrative (“G&A”) Expenses
G&A expenses for the six months ended June 30 consisted of the following (in thousands):
 

   2012   2011  
Gross G&A expenses   $192,481   $148,604  
Reported as rental expenses    (17,008)   (10,065) 
Reported as private capital expenses    (31,956)   (22,148) 
Capitalized G&A expenses    (31,943)   (25,368) 

  

Net G&A   $111,574   $ 91,023  
  

The increase in G&A expenses and the various components was due principally to the Merger, PEPR Acquisition and the larger infrastructure associated with the combined
company. The increase in capitalized G&A is due to our increased development and leasing activities since the Merger.

We capitalize certain costs directly related to our development and leasing activities. Capitalized G&A expenses included salaries and related expenses, as well as other general
and administrative costs. The capitalized G&A costs for the six months ended June 30, was as follows (in thousands):
 

   2012    2011  
Development activities   $19,406    $15,008  
Leasing activities    12,380     9,468  
Costs related to internally developed software    157     892  

    

Total capitalized G&A expenses   $31,943    $25,368  
    

For the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, the capitalized salaries and related costs represented 24.1% and 21.5%, respectively, of our total salaries and related costs. In
addition in 2012, we capitalized $0.8 million of salaries and related costs related to internally developed software that were included as Merger, Acquisition, and Other
Integration Expenses. Salaries and related costs are comprised primarily of wages, other compensation and employee-related expenses.

Merger, Acquisition and Other Integration Expenses
In connection with the Merger and other related activities, we have incurred significant transaction, integration and transitional costs. These costs include investment banker
advisory fees; legal, tax, accounting and valuation fees; termination and severance costs (both cash and stock based compensation awards) for terminated and transitional
employees; non-capitalized system conversion costs; and other integration costs. These costs are expensed as incurred, which in some cases will be through the end of 2012.
Certain of these costs were obligations of AMB and expensed prior to the closing of the Merger by AMB. At the time of the Merger, we terminated our existing credit facilities
and wrote-off the remaining unamortized deferred loan costs associated with such facilities, which is included in Merger, Acquisition and Other Integration Expenses. In
addition, we have included costs associated with the acquisition of a controlling interest in PEPR in 2011 and the liquidation of PEPR in 2012. The following is a breakdown of
the costs incurred during the six months ended June 30 (in thousands):
 

   2012    2011  
Termination, severance and transitional employee costs   $19,537    $ 34,337  
Professional fees    8,954     41,489  
Office closure, travel and other costs    3,423     22,345  
Write-off of deferred loan costs    —       10,869  

    

Total   $31,914    $109,040  
    

The increase in these costs in the second quarter of 2012 over the first quarter of 2012 was related primarily to increased severance, our system implementation, as portions of
the project move into the phase when the costs are expensed (i.e., training and data conversion), additional costs due to the planned liquidation of PEPR and severance and
related costs due to announced organizational changes in Europe to gain efficiencies. We expect to incur similar costs for the remainder of 2012.

Impairment of Real Estate Properties and Other Assets
In the first quarter of 2012, we recorded an impairment charge of $16.1 million related to land received in 2011 in exchange for a note receivable. During the second quarter of
2011, we recorded impairment charges of $103.8 million primarily related to two of our investments in unconsolidated co-investment ventures. One investment was in the U.S.
where our carrying value exceeded the fair value, and another was in South Korea where we sold to our venture partner in July 2011.

Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation and amortization expenses were $374.6 million and $198.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The increase is principally due
to additional depreciation and amortization expenses associated with the assets (including intangible assets) acquired in the second quarter of 2011 relating to the Merger and
PEPR Acquisition along with the Q1 Venture Acquisitions in the first quarter of 2012, as well as completed and leased development properties and additional leasing in our
operating properties.
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Earnings from Unconsolidated Entities, Net
We recognized net earnings from our unconsolidated entities of $17.9 million and $25.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. These earnings
relate to our investments in unconsolidated entities that are accounted for under the equity method. The primary reason for the decrease in 2012 over 2011 is due to the
consolidation of PEPR, NAIF II and Prologis California, previously accounted for under the equity method, and our share of loss related to the early extinguishment of debt of
$25.1 million in Prologis North American Industrial Fund III in the second quarter of 2012. This decrease was partially offset by earnings from investments acquired through
the Merger. The earnings we recognize are impacted by: (i) variances in revenues and expenses of the entity; (ii) the size and occupancy rate of the portfolio of properties owned
by the entity; (iii) our ownership interest in the entity; and (iv) fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates used to translate our share of net earnings to U.S. dollar, if
applicable. We manage the majority of the properties in which we have an ownership interest as part of our total owned and managed portfolio. See discussion of our portfolio
results in the section, “Portfolio Information”. See also Note 4 to our Consolidated Financial Statements in Item I for further breakdown of our share of net earnings recognized.

Interest Expense
Interest expense from continuing operations for the six months ended June 30 included the following components (in thousands):
 

   2012   2011  
Gross interest expense   $295,251   $201,581  
Amortization of discount (premium), net    (16,489)   12,908  
Amortization of deferred loan costs    9,131    12,761  

  

Interest expense before capitalization    287,893    227,250  
Capitalized amounts    (26,565)   (23,807) 

  

Net interest expense   $261,328   $203,443  
  

Gross interest expense increased in 2012 from 2011 primarily due to higher debt levels as a result of the Merger, the PEPR Acquisition and the Q1 Venture Acquisitions in the
first quarter of 2012, partially offset by lower effective borrowing costs.

Our weighted average effective borrowing costs (including amortization of deferred loan costs) was 4.8% and 6.1% for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. Our future interest expense, both gross and the portion capitalized, will vary depending on, among other things, the level of our development activities. As a result
of the Merger and PEPR Acquisition, we increased our debt from $6.4 billion at March 31, 2011 to $12.1 billion at June 30, 2011, which is net of $1.1 billion of reduction with
proceeds from a June 2011 equity issuance. During the remainder of the year, we reduced our debt to $11.4 billion at December 31, 2011. As of June 30, 2012 our debt was
$12.4 billion, principally from the Q1 Venture Acquisitions, which increased our debt by $1.4 billion, offset by repayments with proceeds from sales and contributions of
properties. One of strategic objectives is to reduce our debt with proceeds from property sales. See Notes 2 and 7 to our Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1 and
Liquidity and Capital Resources for further discussion of our debt and borrowing costs.

Interest and Other Income, Net
During the six months ended June 30, 2011, we recognized a $5.6 million charge related to one of our buildings in Japan that was damaged from the earthquake and related
tsunami in March 2011.

Gains on Acquisitions and Dispositions of Investments in Real Estate, Net
We recognized net gains on acquisitions and dispositions of investments in real estate in continuing operations of $268.3 million and $106.3 million during the six months ended
June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Included in 2012 is a $273.0 million gain related to the Prologis California transaction in the first quarter, which represents the adjustment
to fair value of our equity investments at the time we gained control and consolidated the entity. See Note 2 to our Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1 for more details
on these transactions.

Included in 2011 were gains we recognized in the second quarter of 2011 related to the PEPR Acquisition ($85.9 million) and the acquisition of our partner’s interest in a joint
venture in Japan ($13.5 million). These gains represent the adjustment to fair value of our equity investments at the time we gained control and consolidated the entities.

Foreign Currency and Derivative Gains (Losses), Net
In connection with the Merger and the exchange offer discussed in Note 7 to our Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1, our convertible senior notes became
exchangeable senior notes issued by the Operating Partnership that are exchangeable into common stock of the REIT. As a result, the accounting for the exchangeable senior
notes changed, which required us to separate the fair value of the derivative instrument (exchange feature) from the debt instrument and account for it separately as a derivative.
We adjust the derivative instrument at each reporting period to fair value with the resulting adjustment being recorded in earnings. We recognized an unrealized gain of $14.4
million and an unrealized loss of $12.4 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2012, respectively. We recognized an unrealized loss of $9.7 million for the three
and six months ended June 30, 2011, respectively.

Gain (Loss) on Early Extinguishment of Debt, Net
During the six months ended June 30, 2012, we extinguished some secured mortgage debt, unsecured credit facilities of PEPR and two term loans prior to maturity, which
resulted in the recognition of $4.9 million in net gains, the majority of which happened in the first quarter. The gains or losses represent the difference between the recorded debt
(net of premiums and discounts and including related debt issuance costs) and the consideration we paid to retire the debt, including fees.
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Income Tax Expense
During the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, our current income tax expense was $29.1 million and $11.8 million, respectively. We recognize current income tax
expense for income taxes incurred by our taxable real estate investment trust subsidiaries and in certain foreign jurisdictions, as well as certain state taxes. We also include in
current income tax expense the interest associated with our liability for uncertain tax positions. Our current income tax expense fluctuates from period to period based primarily
on the timing of our taxable income and changes in tax and interest rates.

During the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, we recognized a net deferred tax benefit of $8.9 million and a deferred tax expense of $1.0 million, respectively. Deferred
income tax is generally a function of the period’s temporary differences and the utilization of net operating losses generated in prior years that had been previously recognized
as deferred income tax assets in certain of our taxable subsidiaries operating in the U.S. or in foreign jurisdictions. In 2012, the deferred tax benefit was primarily due to the
reversal of deferred tax liabilities that were offset with current income tax expense due to the contribution of properties, as well as the period’s temporary differences.

Discontinued Operations
During the six months ended June 30, 2012, we disposed of land subject to ground leases and 95 properties aggregating 11.9 million square feet to third parties that met the
criteria for discontinued operations. The net gains on disposition of these properties, net of taxes, are reflected in discontinued operations, along with the results of operations of
these properties for all periods presented. During all of 2011, we disposed of land subject to ground leases and 94 properties aggregating 10.7 million square feet to third parties.

As of June 30, 2012, we had land and five operating properties that met the criteria to be recorded as held for sale, and are included in discontinued operations.

See Note 6 to our Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1.

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) – Foreign Currency Translation Gains (Losses), Net
For our consolidated subsidiaries whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar, we translate their financial statements into U.S. dollar at the time we consolidate those
subsidiaries’ financial statements. Generally, assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate in effect as of the balance sheet date. The resulting translation adjustments,
due to the fluctuations in exchange rates from the beginning of the period to the end of the period, are included in Other Comprehensive Income Loss.

During the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, we recorded unrealized losses in Other Comprehensive Loss of $168.7 million and gains of $214.3 million, respectively,
related to foreign currency translations of our foreign subsidiaries into U.S. dollar upon consolidation. In 2012, we recorded net unrealized loss primarily due to the weakening
of the euro and yen to the U.S. dollar from the beginning to the end of the period. The euro rates decreased 3.1% from December 31, 2011 to June 30, 2012. In 2011, the
unrealized gains are mainly the result of the strengthening of the euro and pound sterling to the U.S. dollar, from the beginning to the end of the period. The euro rates increased
7.6% and the pound sterling rates increased 3.8% from December 31, 2010 to June 30, 2011.

Three Months Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011
Our results for the three months ended June 30, 2012 include a full quarter of results related to the Merger and PEPR Acquisition while the results for the six months ended
June 30, 2011 include one month of results for the Merger and PEPR Acquisition. Except as separately discussed above, the changes in net earnings attributable to common
shares and its components for the three months ended June 30, 2012, as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2011, are similar to the changes for the six months periods
ended in the same dates.

Portfolio Information
Our total owned and managed portfolio of properties includes operating industrial properties and does not include properties in our development portfolio, properties held for
sale or non-industrial properties and was as follows (square feet in thousands):
 
   June 30, 2012    December 31, 2011    June 30, 2011  
   Number of Properties   Square Feet   Number of Properties   Square Feet   Number of Properties   Square Feet 
Consolidated    1,927     327,991     1,797     291,051     1,898     302,315  
Unconsolidated    1,161     209,710     1,403     267,752     1,366     264,301  

            

Totals    3,088     537,701     3,200     558,803     3,264     566,616  
            

Same Store Analysis
We evaluate the performance of the operating properties we own and manage using a “same store” analysis because the population of properties in this analysis is consistent
from period to period, thereby eliminating the effects of changes in the composition of the portfolio on performance measures. We include properties owned by us, and
properties owned by the unconsolidated entities (accounted for on the equity method) that are managed by us (referred to as “unconsolidated entities”), including those owned
and managed by AMB prior to the Merger, in our same store analysis. We have defined the same store portfolio, for the three months ended June 30, 2012, as those properties
that were in operation at January 1, 2011, and have been in operation throughout the three-month periods in both 2012 and 2011. We have removed all properties that
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were disposed of to a third party or were classified as held for sale from the population for both periods. We believe the factors that impact rental income, rental expenses and
net operating income in the same store portfolio are generally the same as for the total portfolio. In order to derive an appropriate measure of period-to-period operating
performance, we remove the effects of foreign currency exchange rate movements by using the current exchange rate to translate from local currency into U.S. dollar, for both
periods. The same store portfolio, for the three months ended June 30, 2012, included 519.9 million of aggregated square feet.
 
   For the Three Months Ended June 30,  

   2012   2011   
Percentage

Change  
Rental Income (1)(2)     

Consolidated:     
Rental income per our Consolidated Statement of Operations   $387,089   $222,713   
Rental recoveries per our Consolidated Statement of Operations    100,937    56,303   

Adjustments to derive same store results:     
Rental income of properties not in the same store portfolio — properties developed and acquired during

the period and land subject to ground leases    (20,288)   (5,921)  
Effect of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and other    (654)   (5,739)  

Unconsolidated entities:     
Rental income of properties managed by us and owned by our unconsolidated entities   $314,066   $322,597   

Rental income of AMB properties pre-Merger    —      179,683   
  

Same store portfolio — rental income (2)(3)    781,150    769,636    1.50% 
  

Rental Expenses (1)(4)     
Consolidated:     

Rental expenses per our Consolidated Statement of Operations   $132,031   $ 77,199   
Adjustments to derive same store results:     

Rental expenses of properties not in the same store portfolio — properties developed and acquired during
the period and land subject to ground leases    (7,809)   (3,119)  

Effect of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and other    4,741    1,805   
Unconsolidated entities:     

Rental expenses of properties managed by us and owned by our unconsolidated entities    75,861    71,024   
Rental expense of AMB properties pre-Merger    —      48,528   

  

Same store portfolio — rental expenses (3)(4)    204,824    195,437    4.80% 
  

Net Operating Income (1)     
Consolidated:     

Net operating income per our Consolidated Statement of Operations   $355,995   $201,817   
Adjustments to derive same store results:     

Net operating income of properties not in the same store portfolio — properties developed and acquired
during the period and land subject to ground leases    (12,479)   (2,802)  

Effect of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and other    (5,395)   (7,544)  
Unconsolidated entities:     

Net operating income of properties managed by us and owned by our unconsolidated entities    238,205    251,573   
Net operating income of AMB properties pre-Merger    —      131,155   

  

Same store portfolio — net operating income (3)    576,326    574,199    0.37% 
  

 
(1) As discussed above, our same store portfolio includes industrial properties from our consolidated portfolio and owned by the unconsolidated entities (accounted for on the

equity method) that are managed by us. During the periods presented, certain properties owned by us were contributed to a co-investment venture and are included in the
same store portfolio on an aggregate basis. Neither our consolidated results nor that of the unconsolidated entities, when viewed individually, would be comparable on a
same store basis due to the changes in composition of the respective portfolios from period to period (for example, the results of a contributed property would be included
in our consolidated results through the contribution date and in the results of the unconsolidated entities subsequent to the contribution date).

(2) We exclude the net termination and renegotiation fees from our same store rental income to allow us to evaluate the growth or decline in each property’s rental income
without regard to items that are not indicative of the property’s recurring operating performance. Net termination and renegotiation fees represent the gross fee negotiated
to allow a customer to terminate or renegotiate their lease, offset by the write-off of the asset recognized due to the adjustment to straight-line rents over the lease term. The
adjustments to remove these items are included as “effect of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and other” in the tables above.

(3) These amounts include rental income, rental expenses and net operating income of both our consolidated industrial properties and those owned by our unconsolidated
entities (accounted for on the equity method) and managed by us.
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(4) Rental expenses in the same store portfolio include the direct operating expenses of the property such as property taxes, insurance, utilities, etc. In addition, we include an
allocation of the property management expenses for our direct-owned properties based on the property management fee that is provided for in the individual management
agreements under which our wholly owned management companies provide property management services to each property (generally, the fee is based on a percentage of
revenues). On consolidation, the management fee income earned by the management company and the management fee expense recognized by the properties are
eliminated and the actual costs of providing property management services are recognized as part of our consolidated rental expenses. These expenses fluctuate based on
the level of properties included in the same store portfolio and any adjustment is included as “effect of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and other” in the above
table.

Environmental Matters
A majority of the properties acquired by us were subjected to environmental reviews either by us or the previous owners. While some of these assessments have led to further
investigation and sampling, none of the environmental assessments have revealed an environmental liability that we believe would have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition or results of operations.
We record a liability for the estimated costs of environmental remediation to be incurred in connection with certain operating properties we acquire, as well as certain land
parcels we acquire in connection with the planned development of the land. The liability is established to cover the environmental remediation costs, including cleanup costs,
consulting fees for studies and investigations, monitoring costs and legal costs relating to cleanup, litigation defense, and the pursuit of responsible third parties. We purchase
various environmental insurance policies to mitigate our exposure to environmental liabilities. We are not aware of any environmental liability that we believe would have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview
We consider our ability to generate cash from operating activities, dispositions of properties and from available financing sources to be adequate to meet our anticipated future
development, acquisition, operating, debt service, dividend and distribution requirements.

Near-Term Principal Cash Sources and Uses
In addition to dividends to the common and preferred stockholders of the REIT and distributions to the limited partnership units of the Operating Partnership, we expect our
primary cash needs will consist of the following:
 

 •  repayment of debt, including payments on our credit facilities and scheduled principal payments in the remainder of 2012 of $67 million;
 

 •  completion of the development and leasing of the properties in our consolidated development portfolio (a);
 

 •  investments in current or future unconsolidated entities, as discussed below, primarily for the development and/or acquisition of properties depending on market
and other conditions;

 

 •  development of new properties for long-term investment;
 

 •  capital expenditures and leasing costs on properties;
 

 •  depending on market and other conditions, acquisition of operating properties and/or portfolios of operating properties in global or regional markets for direct,
long-term investment (this might include acquisitions from our co-investment ventures); and

 

 •  depending on market conditions and other factors, we may repurchase our outstanding debt or equity securities through cash purchases, in open market purchases,
privately negotiated transactions, tender offers or otherwise.

 
(a) As of June 30, 2012, we had 30 properties in our development portfolio that were 51.8% leased with a current investment of $660.4 million and a total expected investment

of $1.0 billion when completed and leased, leaving $369.9 million remaining to be spent.

We expect to fund our cash needs principally from the following sources, all subject to market conditions:
 

 •  available unrestricted cash balances ($293.6 million at June 30, 2012);
 

 •  property operations;
 

 •  fees and incentives earned for services performed on behalf of the co-investment ventures and distributions received from the co-investment ventures;
 

 •  proceeds from the disposition of properties, land parcels or other investments to third parties;
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 •  proceeds from the contributions or sales of properties to co-investment ventures;
 

 •  borrowing capacity under our current credit facility arrangements discussed below ($941 million available as of June 30, 2012), other facilities or borrowing
arrangements;

 

 •  proceeds from the issuance of equity securities; and
 

 •  proceeds from the issuance of debt securities, including secured mortgage debt.

Debt
On February 2, 2012, we entered into a senior term loan agreement where we may obtain loans in an aggregate amount not to exceed €487.5 million ($619.3 million at June 30,
2012). The loans can be obtained in U.S. dollar, euro, Japanese yen, and British pound sterling. We may increase the borrowings to approximately €987.5 million ($1.3 billion
at June 30, 2012), subject to obtaining additional lender commitments. The loan agreement is scheduled to mature on February 2, 2014, but we may extend the maturity date
three times at our option, in each case up to one year, subject to satisfaction of certain conditions and payment of an extension fee. We used the proceeds from this senior term
loan to pay off the two outstanding term loans assumed in connection with the Merger and the remainder to pay down borrowings on our credit facilities.

In the first quarter of 2012 in connection with the Q1 Venture Acquisitions, we assumed additional debt of approximately $1.0 billion. See Note 2 to our Consolidated Financial
Statements in Item 1 for more details on these transactions.

In 2012, we issued TMK bonds or increased existing TMK bonds for a combined amount of ¥48.0 billion ($603.5 million).

In April 2012, we redeemed $448.9 million related to the exchangeable notes and repaid $58.9 million of senior unsecured notes at maturity, both of which were paid from our
cash on hand and borrowings on our Credit Facilities.

As of June 30, 2012, we were in compliance with all of our debt covenants. These covenants include customary financial covenants for total debt ratios, encumbered debt ratios
and fixed charge coverage ratios.

See Note 7 to our Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1 for further discussion on our debt.

Equity Commitments Related to Certain Co-Investment Ventures
Certain co-investment ventures have equity commitments from us and our venture partners. We may fulfill our equity commitment through contributions of properties or cash.
Our venture partners fulfill their equity commitment with cash. We are committed to offer to contribute certain properties that we develop and stabilize in select markets in
Europe and Mexico to certain co-investment ventures. These ventures are committed to acquire such properties, subject to certain exceptions, including that the properties meet
certain specified leasing and other criteria, and that the ventures have available capital. Generally the venture obtains financing for the properties and therefore the equity
commitment is less than the acquisition price of the real estate. We are not obligated to contribute properties at a loss. Depending on market conditions, the investment
objectives of the ventures, our liquidity needs and other factors, we may make contributions of properties to these ventures through the remaining commitment period.

The following table is a summary of remaining equity commitments as of June 30, 2012 (in millions):
 

   Equity commitments   
Expiration date for remaining

commitments
Prologis Targeted U.S. Logistics Fund (1)     

Prologis   $ —      Open-Ended(1)
Venture Partners   $ 137.5    

    

Prologis SGP Mexico (2)     
Prologis   $ 24.6    (2)
Venture Partner   $ 98.1    

    

Europe Logistics Venture 1 (3)     
Prologis   $ 75.6    February 2014
Venture Partner   $ 428.7    

    

Prologis China Logistics Venture 1     
Prologis   $ 71.0    March 2015
Venture Partner   $ 402.1    

    

Total Unconsolidated     
Prologis   $ 171.2    
Venture Partner   $ 1,066.4    

    

Prologis Brazil Fund     
Prologis   $ 122.3    December 2013
Fund Partner   $ 122.3    

    

Total Consolidated     
Prologis   $ 122.3    
Venture Partner   $ 122.3    

    

Grand Total     
Prologis   $ 293.5    
Venture Partners   $ 1,188.7    
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(1) We secured $265.5 million in commitments from third parties in 2012 in order to fund future acquisitions from us and third parties that meet the venture’s investment
strategy, or to pay down existing debt. During the second quarter of 2012, the venture called capital of $128.0 million from these investors to pay down existing debt. The
venture called an additional $55.0 million from these investors in July primarily to pay down existing debt.

(2) These equity commitments will be called only if needed to pay outstanding debt of the venture. The relevant debt is due in the third quarter of 2012, with an option to
extend until the third quarter of 2013.

(3) Equity commitments are denominated in euro and reported above in U.S. dollar. During the first quarter of 2012, this co-investment venture acquired two buildings with
proceeds from commitments previously called. In addition, in the first quarter of 2012, the venture called capital of $14.3 million from our partner to cover the acquisition
of one property from us.

For more information on our investments in unconsolidated co-investment ventures, see Note 4 to our Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1.

Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities
For the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, operating activities provided net cash of $160.1 million and used net cash of $15.9 million, respectively. In the first six
months of 2012 and 2011, cash from operating activities was less than the cash distributions paid on common and preferred shares and distributions to noncontrolling interests
by $134.1 million and $157.8 million, respectively. We used cash flows from operating activities and proceeds from the disposition of real estate properties ($888.7 million in
2012 and $610.4 million in 2011) to fund dividends on common and preferred shares and distributions to noncontrolling interests. In 2011, the decrease in cash provided by
operating activities was largely due to the Merger and integration cash expenses of $94.2 million recognized in 2011.

Cash Investing and Cash Financing Activities
For the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, investing activities provided net cash of $189.8 million and used net cash of $647.9 million, respectively. The following are
the significant activities for both periods presented:
 

 

•  We generated cash from contributions and dispositions of properties and land parcels of $888.7 million and $610.4 million during 2012 and 2011, respectively. In
2012, we disposed of land, land subject to ground leases and 95 properties. In 2011, we disposed of land, land subject to ground leases and 41 properties that
included the majority of our non-industrial assets. We have a stated objective to reduce debt that we expect to achieve in part with proceeds received due to sales
and contributions of properties and therefore expect to continue to increase this activity.

 

 
•  In 2012 and 2011, we invested $379.5 million and $383.5 million, respectively, in real estate development and leasing costs for first generation leases. As

discussed previously, we have 30 properties in the development portfolio at June 30, 2012 and we expect to continue to develop new properties as the
opportunities arise.

 

 •  We invested $85.7 million in our operating properties during 2012 and $42.1 million for the same period in 2011, which included recurring capital expenditures,
tenant improvements and leasing commissions on existing operating properties that were previously leased. The increase is primarily a result of the Merger.

 

 •  In 2012, we acquired 167 acres of land for a total of $27.1 million and eight properties and a ground lease with an aggregate purchase price of $47.7 million. In
2011, we acquired 67 acres of land for $44.3 million and one property with an aggregate purchase price of $20.4 million.

 

 •  In connection with the Merger in 2011, we acquired $234.0 million in cash.
 

 
•  During the second quarter 2011, we used $1.0 billion of cash to purchase units in PEPR. The acquisition was funded with borrowings on a new €500 million bridge

facility (“PEPR Bridge Facility”) that was put in place for the acquisition and borrowings under our other credit facilities, which were subsequently paid from our
equity offering (see below for more detail).

 

 •  In 2012, we invested cash of $50.4 million in unconsolidated entities, most of which related to an increase in our unconsolidated joint ventures in Brazil. In 2011,
we received advances, net of repayments, from unconsolidated entities of $11.3 million.

 

 •  In connection with the acquisition of NAIF II in 2012, we repaid the loan from NAIF II to our partner for a total of $336.1 million.
 

 
•  We received distributions from unconsolidated entities as a return of investment of $208.8 million and $57.3 million during 2012 and 2011, respectively. We

received $95.0 million during the second quarter of 2012, which represented a return of capital, from one of our other joint ventures that held a note receivable
that was repaid during the quarter.

 

 •  We generated net cash proceeds from payments on notes receivable of $9.7 million in 2011.
 

 •  In 2011, we invested $55.0 million in a preferred equity interest in a subsidiary of the buyer of a portfolio of non-industrial assets.
 

41



Table of Contents

For the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, financing activities used net cash of $239.4 million and provided net cash of $885.4 million, respectively. The following are
the significant activities for both periods presented:
 

 
•  In June 2011, we completed an equity offering and issued 34.5 million shares of common stock and received net proceeds of approximately $1.1 billion. The

proceeds were used to repay the PEPR Bridge Facility completely and the remainder was used to repay a portion of the borrowings outstanding under our Credit
Facilities.

 

 
•  In 2012, we incurred $1.4 billion in secured mortgage and senior term loan debt. We used the proceeds from the senior term loan to pay off the two outstanding

term loans assumed in connection with the Merger and the remainder to pay down borrowings on our Credit Facilities. In 2011, we incurred $164.5 million in
secured mortgage debt and borrowed $721.0 million on the PEPR Bridge Facility.

 

 •  We had net proceeds on our Credit Facilities of $220.7 million and net payments of $50.2 million during 2012 and 2011, respectively. In 2011, in connection with
the Merger, we repaid the outstanding balance under our existing global line of credit and entered into new Credit Facilities.

 

 
•  In 2012, we repurchased and extinguished $1.3 billion of the original principal amount of our exchangeable senior notes, secured mortgage debt, senior term

loans, and other debt of consolidated entities. In 2011, we used $711.8 million in proceeds from our 2011 equity offering to repay the amounts borrowed under the
PEPR Bridge Facility.

 

 •  We made net payments of $152.4 million and $185.3 million on regularly scheduled debt principal and maturity payments during 2012 and 2011, respectively.
This includes the repayment of €101.3 million ($146.8 million) of the euro notes that matured in April 2011.

 

 •  We paid distributions of $260.5 million and $129.0 million to our common stockholders during 2012 and 2011, respectively. We paid dividends on our preferred
stock of $27.0 million and $12.7 million during 2012 and 2011, respectively.

 

 •  We generated proceeds from the sale and issuance of common stock under our incentive stock plans of $23.1 million in 2012.
 

 •  During 2012, we purchased an additional 5.8% interest in PEPR for $107.3 million and Prologis Institutional Alliance Fund II for $14.1 million. Additionally,
limited partners in the Operating Partnership exchanged units for cash of $5.5 million.

 

 •  In 2012, noncontrolling interest partners made contributions of $36.9 million and we distributed $6.7 million to noncontrolling interests.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
Unconsolidated Co-Investment Ventures Debt

We had investments in and advances to certain unconsolidated co-investment ventures at June 30, 2012 of $1.9 billion. These unconsolidated ventures had total third party debt
of $7.1 billion (in the aggregate, not our proportionate share) at June 30, 2012 that matures as follows (in millions):
 

   2012    2013    2014    2015    2016    Thereafter   
Discount/
Premium  Total (1)  

Prologis North American Properties Fund I   $107.9    $ —      $ —      $ —      $ —      $ —      $ —     $ 107.9  
Prologis North American Properties Fund XI    0.3     0.4     —       —       —       —       0.1    0.8  
Prologis North American Industrial Fund    52.0     80.0     —       108.7     444.0     559.5     —      1,244.2  
Prologis North American Industrial Fund III    118.2     385.6     146.2     —       —       —       (1.1)   648.9  
Prologis Targeted U.S. Logistics Fund    17.0     188.8     102.4     180.7     208.6     810.0     13.8    1,521.3  
Prologis Mexico Industrial Fund    —       —       —       —       —       214.1     —      214.1  
Prologis SGP Mexico    1.8     62.5     3.9     4.1     144.8     —       —      217.1  
Prologis European Properties Fund II (2)    5.7     411.3     184.3     456.1     223.4     204.7     —      1,485.5  
Prologis Targeted Europe Logistics Fund    4.5     9.2     377.7     222.2     2.2     2.4     10.3    628.5  
Prologis Japan Fund 1    5.9     518.2     2.7     4.4     119.5     270.1     6.6    927.4  
Prologis China Logistics Venture 1    —       —       —       —       107.0     —       —      107.0  

              

Total unconsolidated co-investment ventures   $313.3    $1,656.0    $817.2    $976.2    $1,249.5    $2,060.8    $ 29.7   $7,102.7  
              

 

(1) As of June 30, 2012, we had guaranteed $28 million of the third party debt of the co-investment ventures. In our role as the manager, we work with the co-investment
ventures to refinance their maturing debt. There can be no assurance that the co-investment ventures will be able to refinance any maturing indebtedness on terms as
favorable as the maturing debt, or at all. If the ventures are unable to refinance the maturing indebtedness with newly issued debt, they may be able to obtain funds by
voluntary capital contributions from us and our partners or by selling assets. Certain of the ventures also have credit facilities, or unencumbered properties, both of which
may be used to obtain funds. Generally, the co-investment ventures issue long-term debt and utilize the proceeds to repay borrowings under the credit facilities.
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(2) In July 2012, Prologis European Properties Fund II (“PEPF II”) entered into a new senior unsecured term loan and a new secured loan, pursuant to which it can obtain
loans up to €194 million (approximately $239 million). The loans can be obtained in euro and pound sterling.

Contractual Obligations
Distribution and Dividend Requirements
Our dividend policy on our common stock is to distribute a percentage of our cash flow to ensure we will meet the dividend requirements of the Internal Revenue Code, relative
to maintaining our real estate investment trust status, while still allowing us to retain cash to meet other needs such as capital improvements and other investment activities.

We paid a cash distribution of $0.28 per common share for the second quarter on June 29, 2012. Our future common share distributions may vary and will be determined by our
Board upon the circumstances prevailing at the time, including our financial condition, operating results and real estate investment trust distribution requirements, and may be
adjusted at the discretion of the Board during the year.

At June 30, 2012, we had seven series of preferred stock outstanding and all but one series are redeemable at our option. The annual dividend rates on preferred stock are
6.5% per Series L, 6.75% per Series M, 7.0% per Series O, 6.85% per Series P, 8.54% per Series Q, 6.75% per Series R and 6.75% per Series S. The Series Q, R and S were
preferred shares of ProLogis prior to the Merger and dividends on those shares have been reflected in the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1 for both periods ended
June 30, 2012 and 2011. The dividends on the Series L, M, O and P preferred stock have been included in the Consolidated Financial Statements since the Merger, and thus, the
three and six-months periods ended June 30, 2011 include approximately one month of dividends only. The dividends on preferred stock are payable quarterly in arrears.

Pursuant to the terms of our preferred stock, we are restricted from declaring or paying any dividend with respect to our common stock unless and until all cumulative dividends
with respect to the preferred stock has been paid and sufficient funds have been set aside for dividends that have been declared for the relevant dividend period with respect to
the preferred stock.

Other Commitments
On a continuing basis, we are engaged in various stages of negotiations for the acquisition and/or disposition of individual properties or portfolios of properties.

New Accounting Pronouncements
See Note 1 to our Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1.

Funds from Operations (“FFO”)
FFO is a non-GAAP measure that is commonly used in the real estate industry. The most directly comparable GAAP measure to FFO is net earnings. Although the National
Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts (“NAREIT”) has published a definition of FFO, modifications to the NAREIT calculation of FFO are common among real estate
investment trusts, as companies seek to provide financial measures that meaningfully reflect their business.

FFO is not meant to represent a comprehensive system of financial reporting and does not present, nor do we intend it to present, a complete picture of our financial condition
and operating performance. We believe net earnings computed under GAAP remains the primary measure of performance and that FFO is only meaningful when it is used in
conjunction with net earnings computed under GAAP. Further, we believe our consolidated financial statements, prepared in accordance with GAAP, provide the most
meaningful picture of our financial condition and our operating performance.

NAREIT’s FFO measure adjusts net earnings computed under GAAP to exclude historical cost depreciation and gains and losses from the sales, along with impairment charges,
of previously depreciated properties. We agree that these NAREIT adjustments are useful to investors for the following reasons:
 

(i) historical cost accounting for real estate assets in accordance with GAAP assumes, through depreciation charges, that the value of real estate assets diminishes predictably
over time. NAREIT stated in its White Paper on FFO “since real estate asset values have historically risen or fallen with market conditions, many industry investors have
considered presentations of operating results for real estate companies that use historical cost accounting to be insufficient by themselves.” Consequently, NAREIT’s
definition of FFO reflects the fact that real estate, as an asset class, generally appreciates over time and depreciation charges required by GAAP do not reflect the
underlying economic realities.

 

(ii) Real estate investment trusts were created as a legal form of organization in order to encourage public ownership of real estate as an asset class through investment in firms
that were in the business of long-term ownership and management of real estate. The exclusion, in NAREIT’s definition of FFO, of gains and losses from the sales, along
with impairment charges, of previously depreciated operating real estate assets allows investors and analysts to readily identify the operating results of the long-term assets
that form the core of a real estate investment trust’s activity and assists in comparing those operating results between periods. We include the gains and losses from
dispositions and impairment charges of land and development properties, as well as our proportionate share of the gains and losses from dispositions and impairment
charges recognized by our unconsolidated entities, in our definition of FFO.
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Our FFO Measures
At the same time that NAREIT created and defined its FFO measure for the real estate investment trust industry, it also recognized that “management of each of its member
companies has the responsibility and authority to publish financial information that it regards as useful to the financial community.” We believe stockholders, potential investors
and financial analysts who review our operating results are best served by a defined FFO measure that includes other adjustments to net earnings computed under GAAP in
addition to those included in the NAREIT defined measure of FFO. Our FFO measures are used by management in analyzing our business and the performance of our
properties and we believe that it is important that stockholders, potential investors and financial analysts understand the measures management uses.

We use these FFO measures, including by segment and region, to: (i) evaluate our performance and the performance of our properties in comparison to expected results and
results of previous periods, relative to resource allocation decisions; (ii) evaluate the performance of our management; (iii) budget and forecast future results to assist in the
allocation of resources; (iv) assess our performance as compared to similar real estate companies and the industry in general; and (v) evaluate how a specific potential
investment will impact our future results. Because we make decisions with regard to our performance with a long-term outlook, we believe it is appropriate to remove the effects
of short-term items that we do not expect to affect the underlying long-term performance of the properties. The long-term performance of our properties is principally driven by
rental income. While not infrequent or unusual, these additional items we exclude in calculating FFO, as defined by Prologis, are subject to significant fluctuations from period
to period that cause both positive and negative short-term effects on our results of operations in inconsistent and unpredictable directions that are not relevant to our long-term
outlook.

We use our FFO measures as supplemental financial measures of operating performance. We do not use our FFO measures as, nor should they be considered to be, alternatives
to net earnings computed under GAAP, as indicators of our operating performance, as alternatives to cash from operating activities computed under GAAP or as indicators of
our ability to fund our cash needs.

FFO, as defined by Prologis:
To arrive at FFO, as defined by Prologis, we adjust the NAREIT defined FFO measure to exclude:
 

(i) deferred income tax benefits and deferred income tax expenses recognized by our subsidiaries;
 

(ii) current income tax expense related to acquired tax liabilities that were recorded as deferred tax liabilities in an acquisition, to the extent the expense is offset with a
deferred income tax benefit in GAAP earnings that is excluded from our defined FFO measure;

 

(iii) foreign currency exchange gains and losses resulting from debt transactions between us and our foreign consolidated subsidiaries and our foreign unconsolidated entities;
 

(iv) foreign currency exchange gains and losses from the remeasurement (based on current foreign currency exchange rates) of certain third party debt of our foreign
consolidated subsidiaries and our foreign unconsolidated entities; and

 

(v) mark-to-market adjustments associated with derivative financial instruments.

We calculate FFO, as defined by Prologis for our unconsolidated entities on the same basis as we calculate our FFO, as defined by Prologis.

We believe investors are best served if the information that is made available to them allows them to align their analysis and evaluation of our operating results along the same
lines that our management uses in planning and executing our business strategy.

Core FFO
In addition to FFO, as defined by Prologis, we also use Core FFO. To arrive at Core FFO, we adjust FFO, as defined by Prologis, to exclude the following recurring and non-
recurring items that we recognized directly or our share recognized by our unconsolidated entities to the extent they are included in FFO, as defined by Prologis:
 

 •  gains or losses from acquisition, contribution or sale of land or development properties;
 

 •  income tax expense related to the sale of investments in real estate;
 

 •  impairment charges recognized related to our investments in real estate (either directly or through our investments in unconsolidated entities) generally as a result
of our change in intent to contribute or sell these properties;

 

 •  impairment charges of goodwill and other assets;
 

 •  gains or losses from the early extinguishment of debt;
 

 •  merger, acquisition and other integration expenses; and
 

 •  expenses related to natural disasters
We believe it is appropriate to further adjust our FFO, as defined by Prologis for certain recurring items as they were driven by transactional activity and factors relating to the
financial and real estate markets, rather than factors specific to the on-going operating performance of our properties or investments. The impairment charges we recognized
were primarily based on valuations of real estate, which had declined due to market conditions, that we no longer expected to hold for long-term investment. We currently have
and have had over the past several years a stated priority to strengthen our financial position. We expect to accomplish this by reducing our debt, our investment in certain low
yielding assets, such as land that we decide not to develop, and our exposure to foreign currency exchange fluctuations. As a result, we have sold to third parties or contributed
to unconsolidated entities real estate properties that, depending on market conditions, might result in a gain or loss. The impairment charges related to goodwill and other assets
that we have recognized were similarly caused by the decline in the real estate markets. Also in connection with our stated priority to reduce debt and extend debt maturities, we
have purchased portions of our debt securities. As a result, we recognized net gains or losses on the early extinguishment of certain debt due to the financial market conditions
at that time.
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We have also adjusted for some non-recurring items. The merger, acquisition and other integration expenses include costs we incurred in 2011 and that we expect to incur in
2012 associated with the Merger and PEPR Acquisition and the integration of our systems and processes. We have not adjusted for the acquisition costs that we have incurred as
a result of routine acquisitions but only the costs associated with significant business combinations that we would expect to be infrequent in nature. Similarly, the expenses
related to the natural disaster in Japan that we recognized in 2011 are a rare occurrence but we may incur similar expenses again in the future.

We analyze our operating performance primarily by the rental income of our real estate and the revenue driven by our private capital business, net of operating, administrative
and financing expenses. This income stream is not directly impacted by fluctuations in the market value of our investments in real estate or debt securities. As a result, although
these items have had a material impact on our operations and are reflected in our financial statements, the removal of the effects of these items allows us to better understand the
core operating performance of our properties over the long-term.

We use Core FFO, including by segment and region, to: (i) evaluate our performance and the performance of our properties in comparison to expected results and results of
previous periods, relative to resource allocation decisions; (ii) evaluate the performance of our management; (iii) budget and forecast future results to assist in the allocation of
resources; (iv) provide guidance to the financial markets to understand our expected operating performance; (v) assess our operating performance as compared to similar real
estate companies and the industry in general; and (vi) evaluate how a specific potential investment will impact our future results. Because we make decisions with regard to our
performance with a long-term outlook, we believe it is appropriate to remove the effects of items that we do not expect to affect the underlying long-term performance of the
properties we own. As noted above, we believe the long-term performance of our properties is principally driven by rental income. We believe investors are best served if the
information that is made available to them allows them to align their analysis and evaluation of our operating results along the same lines that our management uses in planning
and executing our business strategy.

Limitations on Use of our FFO Measures
While we believe our defined FFO measures are important supplemental measures, neither NAREIT’s nor our measures of FFO should be used alone because they exclude
significant economic components of net earnings computed under GAAP and are, therefore, limited as an analytical tool. Accordingly, they are two of many measures we use
when analyzing our business. Some of these limitations are:
 

(i) The current income tax expenses that are excluded from our defined FFO measures represent the taxes that are payable.
 

(ii) Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets are economic costs that are excluded from FFO. FFO is limited, as it does not reflect the cash requirements that may be
necessary for future replacements of the real estate assets. Further, the amortization of capital expenditures and leasing costs necessary to maintain the operating
performance of industrial properties are not reflected in FFO.

 

(iii) Gains or losses from property acquisitions and dispositions or impairment charges related to expected dispositions represent changes in the value of the properties. By
excluding these gains and losses, FFO does not capture realized changes in the value of acquired or disposed properties arising from changes in market conditions.

 

(iv) The deferred income tax benefits and expenses that are excluded from our defined FFO measures result from the creation of a deferred income tax asset or liability that
may have to be settled at some future point. Our defined FFO measures do not currently reflect any income or expense that may result from such settlement.

 

(v) The foreign currency exchange gains and losses that are excluded from our defined FFO measures are generally recognized based on movements in foreign currency
exchange rates through a specific point in time. The ultimate settlement of our foreign currency-denominated net assets is indefinite as to timing and amount. Our FFO
measures are limited in that they do not reflect the current period changes in these net assets that result from periodic foreign currency exchange rate movements.

We compensate for these limitations by using our FFO measures only in conjunction with net earnings computed under GAAP when making our decisions. To assist investors
in compensating for these limitations, we reconcile our defined FFO measures to our net earnings computed under GAAP. This information should be read with our complete
financial statements prepared under GAAP.
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Three Months Ended

June 30,   
Six Months Ended

June 30,  
   2012   2011   2012   2011  
FFO:      
Reconciliation of net earnings (loss) to FFO measures:      
Net earnings (loss) available for common stockholders   $ (8,120)  $(151,471)  $ 194,293   $(198,087) 
Add (deduct) NAREIT defined adjustments:      

Real estate related depreciation and amortization    182,530    114,814    366,290    190,117  
Net gains on non-FFO dispositions and acquisitions    (10,224)   (1,454)   (180,559)   (2,278) 
Reconciling items related to noncontrolling interests    (3,950)   (2,404)   (16,004)   (2,404) 
Our share of reconciling items included in earnings from unconsolidated entities    34,444    36,660    68,982    72,337  

  

Subtotal-NAREIT defined FFO    194,680    (3,855)   433,002    59,685  
Add (deduct) our defined adjustments:      

Unrealized foreign currency and derivative losses (gains), net    (14,519)   10,287    9,717    8,652  
Deferred income tax expense (benefit)    (5,809)   118    (4,758)   982  
Our share of reconciling items included in earnings from unconsolidated entities    (1,681)   1,645    (3,218)   1,022  

  

FFO, as defined by Prologis    172,671    8,195    434,743    70,341  
Impairment charges    —      106,482    19,320    106,482  
Japan disaster expenses    —      (1,315)   —      5,610  
Merger, acquisition and other integration expenses    21,186    103,052    31,914    109,040  
Losses (gains) on acquisitions and dispositions of investments in real estate, net    838    (106,752)   (103,893)   (109,320) 
Loss (gain) on early extinguishment of debt, net    500    —      (4,919)   —    
Income tax expense on dispositions    —      —      —      1,916  
Our share of reconciling items included in earnings from unconsolidated entities    6,125    —      8,920    —    

  

Core FFO   $201,320   $ 109,662   $ 386,085   $ 184,069  
  

 Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
We are exposed to the impact of interest rate changes and foreign-exchange related variability and earnings volatility on our foreign investments. We have used certain
derivative financial instruments, primarily foreign currency put option and forward contracts, to reduce our foreign currency market risk, as we deem appropriate. We have also
used interest rate swap and cap agreements to reduce our interest rate market risk. We do not use financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes and all financial
instruments are entered into in accordance with established policies and procedures.

We monitor our market risk exposures using a sensitivity analysis. Our sensitivity analysis estimates the exposure to market risk sensitive instruments assuming a hypothetical
10% adverse change in interest rates. The results of the sensitivity analysis are summarized below. The sensitivity analysis is of limited predictive value. As a result, our
ultimate realized gains or losses with respect to interest rate and foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations will depend on the exposures that arise during a future period,
hedging strategies at the time and the prevailing interest and foreign currency exchange rates.

Interest Rate Risk
Our interest rate risk objective is to limit the impact of future interest rate changes on earnings and cash flows. To achieve this objective, we primarily borrow on a fixed rate
basis for longer-term debt issuances. As of June 30, 2012, we had a total of $3.8 billion of variable rate debt outstanding, of which $1.1 billion was outstanding in our credit
facilities, $0.6 billion was outstanding under a multi-currency senior term loan, and $2.1 billion was outstanding secured mortgage debt. As of June 30, 2012, we have entered
into interest rate swap agreements to fix $1.6 billion of our variable rate secured mortgage debt.

Our primary interest rate risk not subject to interest rate swap or cap agreements is created by the variable rate credit facilities, senior term loan and selected secured mortgage
debt. During the six months ended June 30, 2012, we had weighted average daily outstanding borrowings of $2.0 billion on our variable rate debt not subject to interest rate
swap agreements. Based on the results of the sensitivity analysis, which assumed a 10% adverse change in interest rates and is based on our outstanding balances during the six
months ended June 30, 2012, the impact was approximately $1.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012, which equates to a change in interest rates of 18 basis points.

Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign currency risk is the possibility that our financial results could be better or worse than planned because of changes in foreign currency exchange rates.
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Our primary exposure to foreign currency exchange rates relates to the translation of the net income of our foreign subsidiaries into U.S. dollar, principally euro, British pound
sterling and yen. To mitigate our foreign currency exchange exposure, we borrow in the functional currency of the borrowing entity, when appropriate. We also may use foreign
currency put option contracts or other forms of hedging instruments to manage foreign currency exchange rate risk associated with the projected net operating income or net
equity of our foreign consolidated subsidiaries and unconsolidated entities. Hedging arrangements involve risks, such as the risk that counterparties may fail to honor their
obligations under these arrangements. The funds required to settle such arrangements could be significant depending on the stability and movement of foreign currency. The
failure to hedge effectively against exchange and interest rate changes may materially adversely affect our results of operations and financial position. At June 30, 2012, we had
no put option contracts outstanding and, therefore, we may experience fluctuations in our earnings as a result of changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

We also have some exposure to movements in exchange rates related to certain intercompany loans we issue from time to time and we may use foreign currency forward
contracts to manage these risks. At June 30, 2012, we had no forward contracts outstanding and, therefore, we may experience fluctuations in our earnings from the
remeasurement of these intercompany loans due to changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

 Item 4. Controls and Procedures
Controls and Procedures (Prologis, Inc.)
Prologis, Inc. carried out an evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the Co-Chief Executive Officers and Chief Financial Officer,
of the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-14(c)) under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) as of June 30,
2012. Based on this evaluation, the Co-Chief Executive Officers and the Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the disclosure controls and procedures are effective to
ensure the information required to be disclosed in reports that are filed or submitted under the Exchange Act are recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time
periods specified in the SEC rules and forms.

There have been no changes in the internal controls over financial reporting during the most recent fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, internal control over financial reporting.

Controls and Procedures (Prologis, L.P.)
Prologis, L.P. carried out an evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the Co-Chief Executive Officers and Chief Financial Officer,
of the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-14(c)) under the Exchange Act as of June 30, 2012. Based on this evaluation, the Co-Chief
Executive Officers and the Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure the information required to be disclosed in
reports that are filed or submitted under the Exchange Act are recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC rules and forms.

There have been no changes in the internal controls over financial reporting during the most recent fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, internal control over financial reporting.

 PART II
 Item 1. Legal Proceedings
From time to time, we and our unconsolidated entities are party to a variety of legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. We believe that, with respect to any
such matters that we are currently a party to, the ultimate disposition of any such matters will not result in a material adverse effect on our business, financial position or results
of operations.

In December 2011, arbitration hearings began in connection with a dispute related to a real estate development project known as Pacific Commons. The plaintiff, Cisco
Technology, Inc. (“Cisco”), is seeking rescission of a 2007 Restructuring and Settlement Agreement (the “Contract”) and other agreements, and declaratory relief, and damages
for breach of the Contract. Specifically, Cisco seeks (1) declaratory relief that Prologis owes certain Community Facilities District taxes that have been assessed against Cisco’s
land, following Cisco’s purchase of the land from Prologis through the exercise of option agreements; (2) declaratory relief that Prologis’ partial transfers of rights and
obligations under the Contract to third parties are void; and (3) damages for alleged breaches of the Contract relating to the plans to build a baseball stadium at Pacific
Commons. Although the total damages alleged by Cisco are approximately $200 million, we believe these claims are without merit and are defending these matters vigorously.
Based on the facts and circumstances surrounding this dispute, we believe the low end of our range of loss is zero and therefore, in accordance with U.S. Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (“GAAP”), we have not recorded any liability with respect to this matter as of June 30, 2012.

 Item 1A. Risk Factors
As of June 30, 2012, no material changes had occurred in our risk factors as discussed in Item 1A of our Form 10-K.

 Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
None.

 Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities
None.
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 Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not Applicable.

 Item 5. Other Information
None.

 Item 6. Exhibits
 

    3.1   Articles of Amendment (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Prologis’Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 8, 2012).

  10.1   Prologis 2012 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Prologis’ Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 8, 2012).

  10.2   Form of Director Deferred Stock Unit Award Terms (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Prologis’ Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 8, 2012).

  12.1   Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges of Prologis, Inc.

  12.2   Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Share Dividends, of Prologis, Inc.

  12.3   Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges of Prologis, L.P.

  12.4   Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Share Dividends, of Prologis, L.P.

  15.1   KPMG LLP Awareness Letter of Prologis, Inc.

  15.2   KPMG LLP Awareness Letter of Prologis, L.P.

  31.1   Certification of Co-Chief Executive Officers of Prologis, Inc.

  31.2   Certification of Chief Financial Officer of Prologis, Inc.

  31.3   Certification of Co-Chief Executive Officers for Prologis, L.P.

  31.4   Certification of Chief Financial Officer for Prologis, L.P.

  32.1   Certification of Co-Chief Executive Officers and Chief Financial Officer of Prologis, Inc., pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

  32.2   Certification of Co-Chief Executive Officers and Chief Financial Officer for Prologis, L.P., pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101.INS   XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema

101.CAL   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase

101.DEF   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase

101.LAB   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase

101.PRE   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, the registrants have duly caused this report to be signed on their behalf by the undersigned, thereunto
duly authorized.
 

PROLOGIS, INC.

By:  /s/ Thomas S. Olinger
 Thomas S. Olinger
 Chief Financial Officer

By:  /s/ Lori A. Palazzolo
 Lori A. Palazzolo
 Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer

PROLOGIS, L.P.
By:  Prologis, Inc., its general partner

By:  /s/ Thomas S. Olinger
 Thomas S. Olinger
 Chief Financial Officer

By:  /s/ Lori A. Palazzolo
 Lori A. Palazzolo
 Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer

Date: August 6, 2012
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Exhibit 12.1

PROLOGIS, INC.
COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

(Dollar amounts in thousands)
 

   

Six Months
Ended

June  30,   Year Ended December 31,  
   2012   2011   2010   2009   2008   2007  
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations   $187,830   $(244,459)  $(1,589,462)  $(355,089)  $(367,062)  $ 841,022  
Add (Deduct):        

Fixed charges    294,237    531,965    518,399    471,130    556,046    514,636  
Capitalized interest    (26,565)   (52,651)   (53,661)   (94,205)   (168,782)   (123,880) 
Loss (earnings) from unconsolidated entities, net    (17,884)   (59,935)   (23,678)   (28,059)   55,774    (99,026) 
Distributed income from equity entities    20,733    72,976    27,404    63,885    50,042    98,134  
Income tax expense (benefit)    20,199    1,776    (30,499)   5,975    68,011    66,855  

  

Earnings (loss), as adjusted   $478,550   $ 249,672   $(1,151,497)  $ 63,637   $ 194,029   $1,297,741  
  

Fixed charges:        
Interest expense   $261,328   $ 468,738   $ 461,166   $ 372,768   $ 383,781   $ 387,910  
Capitalized interest    26,565    52,651    53,661    94,205    168,782    123,880  
Portion of rents representative of the interest factor    6,344    10,576    3,572    4,157    3,483    2,846  

  

Total fixed charges   $294,237   $ 531,965   $ 518,399   $ 471,130   $ 556,046   $ 514,636  
  

Ratio of earnings (loss), as adjusted, to fixed charges    1.6    (a)   (a)   (a)   (a)   2.5  
 
(a) The loss from continuing operations for 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008 includes impairment charges of $147.7 million, $1.1 billion, $495.2 million, and $595.3 million,

respectively, that are discussed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K. Our fixed charges exceed our earnings (loss), as adjusted, by $282.3 million, $1.7 billion, $407.5
million and $362.0 million for 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.



Exhibit 12.2

PROLOGIS, INC.
COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES

AND PREFERRED SHARE DIVIDENDS
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

 

   

Six Months
Ended

June 30,   Year Ended December 31,  
   2012   2011   2010   2009   2008   2007  
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations   $187,830   $(244,459)  $(1,589,462)  $(355,089)  $(367,062)  $ 841,022  
Add (Deduct):        

Fixed charges    294,237    531,965    518,399    471,130    556,046    514,636  
Capitalized interest    (26,565)   (52,651)   (53,661)   (94,205)   (168,782)   (123,880) 
Loss (earnings) from unconsolidated entities, net    (17,884)   (59,935)   (23,678)   (28,059)   55,774    (99,026) 
Distributed income from equity entities    20,733    72,976    27,404    63,885    50,042    98,134  
Income tax expense (benefit)    20,199    1,776    (30,499)   5,975    68,011    66,855  

  

Earnings (loss), as adjusted   $478,550   $ 249,672   $(1,151,497)  $ 63,637   $ 194,029   $1,297,741  
  

Combined fixed charges and preferred share dividends:        
Interest expense   $261,328   $ 468,738   $ 461,166   $ 372,768   $ 383,781   $ 387,910  
Capitalized interest    26,565    52,651    53,661    94,205    168,782    123,880  
Portion of rents representative of the interest factor    6,344    10,576    3,572    4,157    3,483    2,846  

  

Total fixed charges    294,237    531,965    518,399    471,130    556,046    514,636  
Preferred share dividends    20,616    34,696    25,424    25,423    25,423    25,423  

  

Combined fixed charges and preferred share dividends   $314,853   $ 566,661   $ 543,823   $ 496,553   $ 581,469   $ 540,059  
  

Ratio of earnings (loss), as adjusted, to combined fixed charges and preferred
share dividends    1.5    (a)   (a)   (a)   (a)   2.4  

 
(a) The loss from continuing operations for 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008 includes impairment charges of $147.7 million, $1.1 billion, $495.2 million, and $595.3 million,

respectively, that are discussed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K. Our combined fixed charges and preferred share dividends exceeded our earnings (loss), as adjusted,
by $317.0 million, $1.7 billion, $432.9 million and $387.4 million for 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.



Exhibit 12.3

PROLOGIS, L.P.
COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

(Dollar amounts in thousands)
 

   

Six Months
Ended

June  30,   Year Ended December 31,  
   2012   2011   2010   2009   2008   2007  
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations   $187,830   $(244,459)  $(1,589,462)  $(355,089)  $(367,062)  $ 841,022  
Add (Deduct):        

Fixed charges    294,237    531,965    518,399    471,130    556,046    514,636  
Capitalized interest    (26,565)   (52,651)   (53,661)   (94,205)   (168,782)   (123,880) 
Loss (earnings) from unconsolidated entities, net    (17,884)   (59,935)   (23,678)   (28,059)   55,774    (99,026) 
Distributed income from equity entities    20,733    72,976    27,404    63,885    50,042    98,134  
Income tax expense (benefit)    20,199    1,776    (30,499)   5,975    68,011    66,855  

  

Earnings (loss), as adjusted   $478,550   $ 249,672   $(1,151,497)  $ 63,637   $ 194,029   $1,297,741  
  

Fixed charges:        
Interest expense   $261,328   $ 468,738   $ 461,166   $ 372,768   $ 383,781   $ 387,910  
Capitalized interest    26,565    52,651    53,661    94,205    168,782    123,880  
Portion of rents representative of the interest factor    6,344    10,576    3,572    4,157    3,483    2,846  

  

Total fixed charges   $294,237   $ 531,965   $ 518,399   $ 471,130   $ 556,046   $ 514,636  
  

Ratio of earnings (loss), as adjusted, to fixed charges    1.6    (a)   (a)   (a)   (a)   2.5  
 
(a) The loss from continuing operations for 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008 includes impairment charges of $147.7 million, $1.1 billion, $495.2 million and $595.3 million,

respectively, that are discussed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K. Our fixed charges exceeded our earnings (loss), as adjusted, by $282.3 million, $1.7 billion, $407.5
million and $362.0 million for 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.



Exhibit 12.4

PROLOGIS, L.P.
COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES

AND PREFERRED UNIT DIVIDENDS
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

 

   

Six Months
Ended

June  30,   Year Ended December 31,  
   2012   2011   2010   2009   2008   2007  
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations   $187,830   $(244,459)  $(1,589,462)  $(355,089)  $(367,062)  $ 841,022  
Add (Deduct):        

Fixed charges    294,237    531,965    518,399    471,130    556,046    514,636  
Capitalized interest    (26,565)   (52,651)   (53,661)   (94,205)   (168,782)   (123,880) 
Loss (earnings) from unconsolidated entities, net    (17,884)   (59,935)   (23,678)   (28,059)   55,774    (99,026) 
Distributed income from equity entities    20,733    72,976    27,404    63,885    50,042    98,134  
Income tax expense (benefit)    20,199    1,776    (30,499)   5,975    68,011    66,855  

  

Earnings (loss), as adjusted   $478,550   $ 249,672   $(1,151,497)  $ 63,637   $ 194,029   $1,297,741  
  

Combined fixed charges and preferred unit dividends:        
Interest expense   $261,328   $ 468,738   $ 461,166   $ 372,768   $ 383,781   $ 387,910  
Capitalized interest    26,565    52,651    53,661    94,205    168,782    123,880  
Portion of rents representative of the interest factor    6,344    10,576    3,572    4,157    3,483    2,846  

  

Total fixed charges    294,237    531,965    518,399    471,130    556,046    514,636  
Preferred unit dividends    20,616    34,696    25,424    25,423    25,423    25,423  

  

Combined fixed charges and preferred unit dividends   $314,853   $ 566,661   $ 543,823   $ 496,553   $ 581,469   $ 540,059  
  

Ratio of earnings (loss), as adjusted, to combined fixed charges and preferred
unit dividends    1.5    (a)   (a)   (a)   (a)   2.4  

 
(a) The loss from continuing operations for 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008 includes impairment charges of $147.7 million, $1.1 billion, $495.2 million, and $595.3 million,

respectively, that are discussed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K. Our combined fixed charges and preferred unit dividends exceeded our earnings (loss), as adjusted,
by $317.0 million, $1.7 billion, $432.9 million and $387.4 million for 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.



Exhibit 15.1

The Board of Directors
Prologis, Inc.:
 

Re: Registration Statement Nos. 333-78699, 333-81475, 333-75951, and 333-177112 on Form S-3; Registration Statement Nos. 333-173891 and 333-172741 on Form S-4;
and Registration Statement Nos. 333-42015, 333-78779, 333-90042, 333-100214, 333-144489, 333-177378, 333-178955, and 333-181529 on Form S-8.

With respect to the subject registration statements, we acknowledge our awareness of the use therein of our report dated August 6, 2012 related to our review of interim
financial information.

Pursuant to Rule 436 under the Securities Act of 1933 (the Act), such report is not considered part of a registration statement prepared or certified by an independent registered
public accounting firm, or a report prepared or certified by an independent registered public accounting firm within the meaning of Sections 7 and 11 of the Act.

KPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
August 6, 2012



Exhibit 15.2

The Partners
Prologis, L.P.:

Re: Registration Statement No. 333-177112 on Form S-3; and Registration Statement No. 333-100214 on Form S-8.

With respect to the subject registration statements, we acknowledge our awareness of the use therein of our report dated August 6, 2012 related to our review of interim
financial information.

Pursuant to Rule 436 under the Securities Act of 1933 (the Act), such report is not considered part of a registration statement prepared or certified by an independent registered
public accounting firm, or a report prepared or certified by an independent registered public accounting firm within the meaning of Sections 7 and 11 of the Act.

KPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
August 6, 2012



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

We, Hamid R. Moghadam and Walter C. Rakowich, certify that:
 

1. We have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Prologis, Inc.;
 

2. Based on our knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light
of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

 

3. Based on our knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

 

4. We, and the registrant’s other certifying officer, are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures, (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a
–15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

 

 
a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material

information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

 

 
b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

 

 c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

 

 
d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the

registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

 

5. We, and the registrant’s other certifying officer, have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors
and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 

 a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 

 b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

 
Dated: August 6, 2012   /s/ Hamid R. Moghadam

 Name:  Hamid R. Moghadam
 Title:  Co-Chief Executive Officer

  /s/ Walter C. Rakowich
 Name:  Walter C. Rakowich
 Title:  Co-Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Thomas S. Olinger, certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Prologis, Inc.;
 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light
of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures, (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a –
15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

 

 
a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material

information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

 

 
b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

 

 c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

 

 
d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the

registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors
and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 

 a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 

 b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

 
Dated: August 6, 2012   /s/ Thomas S. Olinger

 Name:  Thomas S. Olinger
 Title:  Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 31.3

CERTIFICATION

We, Hamid R. Moghadam and Walter C. Rakowich, certify that:
 

1. We have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Prologis, L.P.;
 

2. Based on our knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light
of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

 

3. Based on our knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

 

4. We, and the registrant’s other certifying officer, are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures, (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a
–15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

 

 
a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material

information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

 

 
b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

 

 c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

 

 
d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the

registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

 

5. We, and the registrant’s other certifying officer, have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors
and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 

 a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 

 b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

 
Dated: August 6, 2012   /s/ Hamid R. Moghadam

 Name:  Hamid R. Moghadam
 Title:  Co-Chief Executive Officer

  /s/ Walter C. Rakowich
 Name:  Walter C. Rakowich
 Title:  Co-Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.4

CERTIFICATION

I, Thomas S. Olinger, certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Prologis, L.P.;
 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light
of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures, (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a –
15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

 

 
a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material

information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

 

 
b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

 

 c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

 

 
d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the

registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors
and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 

 a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 

 b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

 
Dated: August 6, 2012   /s/ Thomas S. Olinger

 Name:  Thomas S. Olinger
 Title:  Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, each of the undersigned officers of Prologis, Inc. (“the Company”), hereby certifies, to such officer’s knowledge,
that the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2012 (the “Report”), which accompanies these certifications, fully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and that the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the
financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
Dated: August 6, 2012   /s/ Hamid R. Moghadam

 Name:  Hamid R. Moghadam
 Title:  Co-Chief Executive Officer

Dated: August 6, 2012   /s/ Walter C. Rakowich
 Name:  Walter C. Rakowich
 Title:  Co-Chief Executive Officer

Dated: August 6, 2012   /s/ Thomas S. Olinger
 Name:  Thomas S. Olinger
 Title:  Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, each of the undersigned officers of Prologis, L.P. (“the Company”), hereby certifies, to such officer’s knowledge,
that the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2012 (the “Report”), which accompanies these certifications, fully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and that the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the
financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
Dated: August 6, 2012   /s/ Hamid R. Moghadam

 Name:  Hamid R. Moghadam
 Title:  Co-Chief Executive Officer

Dated: August 6, 2012   /s/ Walter C. Rakowich
 Name:  Walter C. Rakowich
 Title:  Co-Chief Executive Officer

Dated: August 6, 2012   /s/ Thomas S. Olinger
 Name:  Thomas S. Olinger
 Title:  Chief Financial Officer
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